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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Wing Lee Holdings
Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the audited
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2012.

For the year, the Group achieved a revenue of approximately HK$369
million (2011 approximately HK$361 million (restated)), representing
an increase of 2% as compared with the same period in 2011. Profit
for the year of the Group was approximately HK$312 million (2011
approximately HK$167 million), representing an increase of 87% as
compared with the same period in 2011. Earnings per share were
97.59 HK cents (2011: 49.09 HK cents).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Electronic Manufacturing Services Business (the “EMS
Business”)

Although the US economy has shown gradual recovery during the
year ended 31 December 2012, in 2012 both the U.S. and European
economy were still very much in a state of economic doldrums.
Following the substantial interruption in the supply chain of electronic
consumer products in the world due to the earthquake and tsunami in
Japan and the severe floods in Thailand in 2011, decrease in orders
from Europe and Japan continued through 2012, affecting the overall
sales of the electronic component manufacturing sector.

By exerting significant effort in developing the Korean market in 2011
and 2012, the first-tier customers there have responded well to
the production capability and deliverables of the Group. The Group
attained remarkable success in obtaining a considerable share of the
electronics component manufacturing sector in the Korean market.
The Group’s immense efforts put into increasing our market share
in Korea was reflected in the increase in orders from Korea which
accounted for around 35% of the total number of orders in 2012. This
increase offset the impact of the reduced orders from Europe and
Japan.

Property Investment Business (the “Property Business”)
From 2004 to the present, the Company built up a second core
business in property investments. With a strong balance sheet and
good property portfolio, the property portfolio, as appraised by an
independent valuer reached a fair value of approximately HK$884
million as at 31 December 2012. During the year, the Company
prepared for the spin-off of Wing Lee Property Investments Limited
(“Wing Lee Property”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Property Group”) and Wing Lee Property was successfully listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 19 March 2018.
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PROSPECTS

With the spin-off of the property investment business of the Company
now complete, the Group will look forward to focusing on and
furthering its manufacturing and trading business.

Our European customers were mostly affected by the economic
downturn and during the year ended 31 December 2012, orders
from this group declined by around 50%. In addition, our Japanese
customers were more detrimentally affected due to a very strong Yen
for most part of the year, affecting the sales of completed electrical
goods exported from Japan. Although the Japanese currency started
to depreciate towards the end of 2012, we would not expect to see
the impact of this decline until well into 2013. The most promising
market in terms of orders in 2012 was from Korean customers,
wherein the Group has secured its market share to first-tier customers
there. As the Korean market has become one of the major markets for
the Group, the Group is confident in its prospects and will continue to
place more efforts into the Korean market.

Looking ahead for the financial year of 2013, we shall be cautiously
optimistic about the manufacturing and trading business as we believe
that our Korean customers will increasingly patronise us because
of our good track record; and we also expect that orders from our
major Japanese customers would also increase as the Yen becomes
weaker. Such trends should be able to offset the decline in European
orders. The Group has sufficient cash reserves and a low borrowing
rate. We will seek to lay a solid foundation for the future through
expanding customer and product diversity.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to thank
all our beloved shareholders, respectable customers, dedicated
vendors and professional bankers for their support over the year and
look forward to a closer cooperation in coming years.

| would also like to personally thank all management and staff for their

hard work and commitment to the Group and cheer them as we tackle
future challenges successfully.

Chow Tak Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2013
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CORE BUSINESS

Manufacture of and Trading in Electronic Components

The Group engaged in the design, manufacture of and trading in
electronic components, mainly jacks and connectors, all of which are
basic components used in electronic, communication and computer
products. The major customer groups who account for the larger
proportion in the Group’s products sales are reputable brand named
owners from Korea, Japan and Europe.

For the year, the Group achieved a revenue of approximately HK$369
million (2011: approximately HK$361 million (restated)), representing
an increase of approximately 2% as compared with the same period
in 2011. Profit before taxation for the year of the Group from the EMS
Business was approximately HK$39 million (2011: approximately
HK$33 million), representing an increase of approximately 18% as
compared with the same period in 2011. Earnings per share from the
EMS Business were 7.66 HK cents (2011: 8.30 HK cents).

Despite the persistent appreciation of the Renminbi and increasing
wages and peripheral costs in the factories owned and operated by
the Group, the Group has maintained a stable gross profit margin,
through operating with caution and stringent cost control.

Property Investment

This previously second core business of the Group is now a
discontinued operation with the successful spin-off and separate
listing of Wing Lee Property on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on 19 March 2013.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at 31 December 2012, the net current assets of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$885 million (31 December 2011:
approximately HK$104 million). The current and quick ratio was 4.6
and 4.5 (31 December 2011: 1.7 and 1.4) respectively.

As at 31 December 2012, the net current assets of the EMS Business
amounted to approximately HK$74 million. The current and quick ratio
was 1.7 and 1.3 respectively.

Moreover, as at 31 December 2012, the bank deposits and cash
of the Group were approximately HK$132 million, represented
by approximately HK$71 million from the EMS Business and
approximately HK$61 million from the Property Business (31
December 2011: HK$118 million), which included fixed deposits of, in
the aggregate amount of the EMS Business and Property Business,
approximately HK$35 million (31 December 2011: approximately
HK$62 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group continued to adopt a prudent financial management policy,
which heavily relies on cash generated from internal resources. The
gearing ratio, calculated by dividing total bank borrowings by equity
attributable to owners of the Company, was 13.9% (31 December
2011: 19.6%).

As at 31 December 2012, the gearing ratio of the EMS Business,
calculated by dividing total bank borrowings by net assets of the
EMS Business, was 4.7%. The bank borrowings of the EMS Business
were approximately HK$30 million, which were all repayable within
one year. The loans were principally used to finance the sales
operation of the EMS Business. Throughout the year, the EMS
Business maintained a net cash position, and as at 31 December
2012, there was net cash of approximately HK$41 million. There were
approximately HK$15 million unutilised banking facilities available for
the EMS Business as at 31 December 2012.

As at 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of bank borrowings
of the Property Business was approximately HK$126 million and
all of the bank borrowings were secured by mortgages over the
Property Business’s investment properties with carrying amounts
of approximately HK$467 million. The Property Business had no
available unutilised banking facilities as at 31 December 2012. Of
the total bank borrowings of the Property Business at 31 December
2012, approximately HK$32 million was repayable within one year and
approximately HK$94 million was repayable after one year.

Capital and Reserves

Shareholders’ funds rose to approximately HK$1,125 million (31
December 2011: approximately HK$829 million). Subsequent to 31
December 2012, the net assets of the Group will be significantly
decreased as the net assets of the Property Group was spun-off from
the Group in March 2013. As at 31 December 2012, the net assets of
the Property Group was approximately HK$811 million. The extent of
decrease is yet to be determined as the Group retains 17% interest in
the Property Group immediately after the spin-off.

During 2011, the Company purchased its own ordinary shares of
HK$0.5 each through the Stock Exchange. It paid total considerations
of approximately HK$28.5 million for the purchase of 32,858,000
shares. There was no re-purchase of its own ordinary shares in 2012.

Capital Expenditure

During the year, the EMS Business has invested approximately HK$26
million (2011: approximately HK$20 million), mainly on six sets of high
quality plastic injection machines and 61 sets of automatic machines
to further improve the quality and production efficiency of our
products. As at 31 December 2012, there was no capital expenditure
commitments and authorisations.
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Treasury Policy

The Group’s sales were principally denominated in US dollars and
Hong Kong dollars while purchases were transacted mainly in
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. The fluctuation of Renminbi in 2012
did not materially affect the costs and operations of the Group for the
year and the Directors do not foresee significant risk in exchange rate
fluctuation. Currently, the Group has not entered into any financial
instruments for hedging purposes. However, the Group will closely
monitor its overall foreign exchange exposures and interest rate
exposures, and consider hedging against the exposures should the
need arise.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2012.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2012, the Group employed a total of
approximately 1,800 employees (31 December 2011: approximately
1,900 employees) in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”). The total salaries and wages for the year ended 31
December 2012 amounted to approximately HK$94 million (2011:
approximately HK$84 million), of which approximately HK$86 million
(2011: approximately HK$79 million) was for employees of the EMS
Business. Employees are remunerated based on their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice. The Group’s remuneration
policies and packages are reviewed by the management on a regular
basis. In addition to offering competitive salary packages, the Group
also grants discretionary bonuses and share options, if any, to
subscribe shares of the Company to qualified employees based on
operation conditions and individual performance.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chow Tak Hung, aged 59, is the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Group. Mr. Chow is the husband of Ms. Chau
Choi Fa, a Non-executive Director and the older brother of Ms. Chow
Woon Yin, an Executive Director. Mr. Chow founded the business
of the Group in 1971, and has over 40 years of management,
production and marketing experience in the electronics industry. He
is responsible for the overall strategic planning and corporate policy
of the Group. Mr. Chow is also a director of all the subsidiaries of the
Company, save and except 2 & (7T ) BEFHR AT and = (7T)
B ¥ B R A7, subsidiaries established in the PRC.

Ms. Chow Woon Yin, aged 56, is the Deputy Chairman of the Group.
Ms. Chow is the younger sister of Mr. Chow Tak Hung, the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Group and an Executive Director
and the sister-in-law of Ms. Chau Choi Fa, a Non-executive Director.
She joined the Group in 1985, and has over 25 years of management,
production and marketing experience in the electronics industry. She
is responsible for the sales and marketing of the Group. Ms. Chow is
also a director of all the subsidiaries of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wong Siu Wah, aged 66, was an Executive Director of the Group
until 18 March 2013, when she was redesignated as a Non-executive
Director. Ms. Wong joined the Group in 1989, and has over 20 years
of management experience in the electronics industry. Prior to joining
the Group, she had over 15 years of management experience in the
toy industry. On 2 November 2012, Ms. Wong resigned as a director
from all subsidiaries of the Company, save and except subsidiaries
established in the PRC and companies comprising the Property
Group.

Ms. Chau Choi Fa, aged 45, was an Executive Director of the Group
until 18 March 2013, when she was redesignated as a Non-executive
Director. Ms. Chau is the wife of Mr. Chow Tak Hung, the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Group and an Executive Director
and the sister-in-law of Ms. Chow Woon Yin, an Executive Director.
She joined the Group in 1988, and has over 20 years of management
and production experience in the electronics industry. On 2 November
2012, Ms. Chau resigned as a director from all subsidiaries of the
Company, save and except subsidiaries established in the PRC and
companies comprising the Property Group.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Lau Yue Sun, BBS, aged 72, is the managing director of New
Products Investment Limited and Jip Fair Development Limited, as
well as an independent non-executive director of Goldlion Holdings
Limited, which is a company listed on the Stock Exchange. He
has over 30 years of experience in manufacturing, electronics,
plastic injection products and import-export business. Dr. Lau is a
member of the National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, a member of the Selection Committee for
the First Government of Hong Kong, a member of the Second and
Third Election Committee of Hong Kong and a standing committee
member of the Chinese General Chamber of Commerce. He is also an
advisor of Guangdong Education Foundation and a vice president of
Guangdong Federation of Industry and Commerce.

Mr. Yip Tai Him, aged 42, is a practising accountant in Hong Kong.
Mr. Yip is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom. He has
over 15 years of experience in accounting, auditing and financial
management. Mr. Yip is also an independent non-executive director
of China Communication Telecom Services Company Limited, China
Media and Films Holdings Limited, GCL-Poly Energy Holdings Limited,
iOne Holdings Limited and Vinco Financial Group Limited, all of
which are companies listed on the Stock Exchange. He was also an
independent non-executive director of Yunbo Digital Synergy Group
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange, until his resignation
in February 2012.

Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong, aged 59, is a Justice of the Peace and a
solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong. He holds a Bachelor of Laws
degree from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lam was a member of
the Election Committee of Hong Kong, and currently a member of the
Buildings Ordinance Appeal Tribunal Panel, a member of the Panel
of Adjudicators, Obscene Articles Tribunal and an Ex-Officio Member
of Heung Yee Kuk. Mr. Lam is also an independent non-executive
director of Same Time Holdings Limited and Sparkle Roll Group
Limited, both of which are companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
He was also an independent non-executive director of 21 Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange, until his resignation
in October 2011.

Details of the shareholdings of the Directors are set out in the section
below headed “Directors’ Report — Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests in Securities”.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Tam Chak Chi, aged 36, was the company secretary and financial
controller of the Group until his resignation from both positions with
effect from 13 April 2012. Mr. Tam joined the Group in 2006 and
has over 10 years of experience in auditing, financial management
and taxation. He is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to his
resignation, Mr. Tam was responsible for the financial and company
secretarial matters of the Group.

Ms. Chan Kwan Lin, aged 45, became the company secretary and
financial controller of the Group with effect from 13 April 2012. Prior
to joining the Group, Ms. Chan held a senior position with a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange for 10 years and had
approximately 10 years of experience in auditing with an international
accounting firm. She is an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Ms. Chan is
responsible for the financial and company secretarial matters of the
Group.

Mr. So Shun Tong, aged 49, is the General Manager of the Group.
Mr. So joined the Group in 1985 and has over 25 years of engineering
and manufacturing experience in the electronics industry. He is
responsible for the production and administration of the factories in
the PRC.

Ms. Chan Sze Wan, aged 41, is the Marketing Manager of the
Group. Ms. Chan joined the Group in 1992 and has over 20 years
of sales and marketing experience in the electronics industry. She is
responsible for the sales and marketing of products to both local and
overseas customers.

Mr. Cheng Yiu Kwan, aged 62, is the Advisor of the Group. Mr. Cheng
joined the Group in 2005 and has over 30 years of management and
marketing experience in the finance industry. He holds a Bachelor of
Arts degree in economics from the International Christian University,
Tokyo, and a Master of Business Administration degree in finance
from the University of British Columbia, Vancouver. Mr. Cheng is
responsible for assisting the sales team in their overall interactions
with major customers.
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The Board is pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board considers effective corporate governance a key component
in the Group’s sustained development and believes that good
corporate governance practices are increasingly important for
maintaining and promoting shareholder value and investor confidence.
The Board sets appropriate policies and implements corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of the
Group’s business.

The Company has considered and applied the principles set out
in the “Code on Corporate Governance Practices” (effective until
31 March 2012) and the “Corporate Governance Code” (effective
from 1 April 2012) (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”). In the opinion of the Board, the Company has
complied with the code provisions set out in the CG Code during the
year ended 31 December 2012, except for code provisions A.2.1 and
A.4.2. The details of the foregoing deviations are provided below.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure that they comply with the statutory and regulatory standards
and align with the latest developments.

A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(1) Responsibilities

The overall management of the Group’s business is vested
in the Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership
and control of the Group and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Group by directing and
supervising its affairs and overseeing the implementation of
plans to enhance shareholder value. Every Director carries
out his/her duty in good faith and in compliance with the
standards of applicable laws and regulations, and takes
decisions objectively in the interests of the Group and the
shareholders.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the
company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”),
with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and
all applicable rules and regulations are followed. The
Independent Non-executive Directors may take independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense in carrying
out their functions, upon making request to the Board.
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A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS - continued
(2) Board Composition

The Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Chow Tak Hung (Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer
and Chairman of both the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee
until 29 March 2012, and from
29 March 2012, Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer and Member of both
the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee)
Ms. Chow Woon Yin (Deputy Chairman)
Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Wong Siu Wah (redesignated from Executive Director with effect
from 18 March 2013)
(redesignated from Executive Director with effect

from 18 March 2013)

Ms. Chau Choi Fa

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Dr. Lau Yue Sun (Member of both the Remuneration Committee
and the Audit Committee until
29 March 2012, and from 29 March 2012,
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
Member of the Audit Committee)
(Chairman of the Audit Committee and
Member of both the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee)
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong  (Member of both the Nomination Committee
and the Audit Committee until
29 March 2012 and from 29 March 2012,
Chairman of the Nomination Committee and
Member of the Audit Committee)

Mr. Yip Tai Him

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all
corporate communications issued by the Company from
time to time. The biographical details of the Directors of the
Company as well as the relationships among them, if any,
are set out under the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profile” on pages 9 to 11 of this report.

The Board has maintained the necessary balance of skills

and experience appropriate for the business requirements
and objectives of the Group.
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A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS - continued

()

3)

Board Composition — continued

The Board has at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of Independent
Non-executive Directors representing at least one-third
of the Board, with at least one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The Company
has received written annual confirmation from all of
its Independent Non-executive Directors in respect of
their independence pursuant to the requirements of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of them
are independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

The Independent Non-executive Directors bring a wide
range of business and financial expertise, experience
and independent judgement to the Board and they are
invited to serve on the Board committees of the Company.
Through active participation in Board meetings, taking
the lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of
interests and serving on Board committees, all Independent
Non-executive Directors make various contributions to the
effective direction of the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the
roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual so that power is not concentrated in one
individual.

Mr. Chow Tak Hung currently holds the offices of both
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
Mr. Chow is the founder of the Group and has extensive
experience in the electronics industry. He has the
appropriate standing, management skills and business
acumen that are essential prerequisites for assuming the
two roles. The Board believes that vesting both roles in
Mr. Chow provides the Group with strong and consistent
leadership and, at the same time, allows for the continuous
effective operations and development of the Group’s
business. As such, the structure is beneficial to the Group
and the shareholders as a whole.
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A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS - continued

3)

(4)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer — continued
As other Board members are keeping abreast of the
conduct, business activities and development of the Group
and as the day-to-day business operations of the Group
are delegated to the management, the Board considers that
the current structure of vesting the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer in the same person will not impair the
balance of power and authority.

Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

Each of the Executive Directors of the Company is engaged
pursuant to a service contract for a fixed term. The current
term for all Executive Directors is three years. All the Non-
executive and Independent Non-executive Directors of
the Company have also been appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election. The term of office of each
Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Director is one year.

Code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code requires that all
directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be
subject to election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after their appointment and that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. The Company’s bye-laws (“Bye-laws”) deviates
from such code provision in the following aspects with the
reasons for the deviations/measures taken to address the
deviations specified below:

(@) The Bye-laws provides that any new director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the existing Board shall be subject to election by
shareholders of the Company at the Company’s next
following annual general meeting, instead of the first
general meeting, after appointment.

—  The reason for keeping such Bye-laws provision
is to ensure the Company’s compliance with
paragraph 4(2) of Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules
and also to facilitate the Company’s process of re-
election of Directors since it enables the Company
and the shareholders to consider the re-election
of those new Directors appointed by the Board
during the year and of those Directors retiring by
rotation at the same general meeting.
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- continued

(b) The Bye-laws do not state that Directors should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years and besides, it provides that the Chairman
of the Board and/or the Managing Director shall not be
subject to retirement by rotation.

- Notwithstanding the foregoing Bye-laws
provisions, in practice, Ms. Chau Choi Fa, the
former Managing Director of the Company, has
voluntarily submitted herself for re-election by
shareholders before and will continue to do so;
and Mr. Chow Tak Hung, the Chairman of the
Board, will also voluntarily submit himself for re-
election by shareholders in the Company’s annual
general meeting, such that all Directors of the
Company are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

The Board will consider in due course whether amendments
on the Company’s Bye-laws are necessary.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company comprises one
Executive Director, namely Mr. Chow Tak Hung (Chairman
of the Nomination Committee until 29 March 2012), and
two Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam
Kwok Cheong and Mr. Yip Tai Him. Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong
was appointed as Chairman of the Nomination Committee
with effect from 29 March 2012. Mr. Chow Tak Hung
remained as a member of the Nomination Committee.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the Board composition, developing
and formulating relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of Directors, making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment and succession planning
of Directors, and assessment of the independence of the
Company’s Independent Non-executive Directors.
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Nomination Committee — continued

As set out in the Nomination Committee’s Terms of
Reference, the Nomination Committee carries out the
process of selecting and recommending candidates for
directorships by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, character, personal ethics and
integrity and time commitments of such individuals as well
as the Company’s needs and market conditions. An external
recruitment agency may be engaged to carry out the
selection process when necessary.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the
year ended 31 December 2012 and the attendance record
is set out under the section headed “Directors’ Attendance
Records” of this report. The Nomination Committee
performed the following work during the year:

(a) reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills
and experience appropriate for the requirements of the
business of the Company;

(o) recommended the re-appointment of Ms. Chow Woon
Yin and Ms. Wong Siu Wah, the Directors standing for
re-election at the 2012 annual general meeting of the
Company held on 15 June 2012;

(c) determined the policy for the nomination of directors;
and

(d) assessed the independence of the Independent
Non-executive Directors.
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A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS - continued

(5)

(6)

Induction and Continuing Development for
Directors

Each newly appointed Director shall receive an induction on
the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure
that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully
aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

The Directors are continuously updated with legal and
regulatory developments, and the business and market
changes to ensure that they have a proper understanding
of the Company’s business and operations and are fully
aware of their duties and responsibilities under statute and
common law, the Listing Rules and the Company’s business
and governance policies, to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Professional briefings and development to
directors will be arranged whenever necessary.

Directors and the Company Secretary have received
training regarding a wide spectrum of areas relating to
directors’ duties and corporate governance during the
year. The Directors believe that such training helps them
to keep abreast of relevant legal requirements and good
corporate governance practices. In particular, on 15 August
2012, the Directors and senior management attended a
directors’ training session in relation to the duties and
ongoing obligations of directors of listed companies, which
was conducted by the Hong Kong legal advisors of the
Company. Following the training session, the directors and
Company Secretary were tested on those items discussed
during the training session to reinforce the understanding of
the content of the training.

Board Meetings

Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting
are normally made available to Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors
at least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board and
committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.
Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all Directors at least three
days before each Board meeting or committee meeting
to keep the Directors apprised of the latest developments
and financial position of the Company and to enable them
to make informed decisions. The Board and each Director
also have separate and independent access to the senior
management whenever necessary.
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A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS - continued
(6) Board Meetings - continued

Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings — continued
The Chief Executive Officer, Managing Director and
Company Secretary normally attend regular Board
meetings and when necessary, other Board and committee
meetings to advise on business developments, financial
and accounting matters, statutory compliance, corporate
governance and other major aspects of the Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking and
keeping minutes of all Board meetings and committee
meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors
for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting
and the final version is open for Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material
transaction, which involves a conflict of interests between
any member of the Group and a substantial shareholder
or a Director, will be considered and dealt with by the
Board at a duly convened Board meeting. Pursuant to the
Company’s Bye-laws, Directors are required to abstain from
voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for
approving transactions in which such Directors or any of
their associates have a material interest.

Directors’ Attendance Records

During the year ended 31 December 2012, four regular
Board meetings were held at approximately quarterly
intervals for reviewing and approving the financial and
operating performance, and considering and approving the
overall strategies and policies of the Company.

The attendance records of each Director/Committee
member at the meetings of the Board, the Nomination
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Audit
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2012 are
set out below:

SRHERR/ XY
Attendance/Number of Meetings
A REZESR FHEESR ENEEE
Nomination Remuneration Audit
EE5E Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee
HITES: Executive Directors:
BB S Mr. Chow Tak Hung 4/4 1/1 1/1 i FAN/A
Azt Ms. Chow Woon Yin 4/4 T EFAN/A N E FN/A i ANA
FHITEE (R Non-executive Directors (redesignated
—E-=F=fH from Executive Director with effect
+\BARHTES  from 18 March 2013):
HE)
%?%ﬁ(i Ms. Wong Siu Wah 4/4 N E FN/A NE FAN/A i FN/A
ARt Ms. Chau Choi Fa 4/4 A E FAN/A N E FIN/A T E FN/A
BUYFHTEE:  Independent Non-executive Directors:
AFHiEL Dr. Lau Yue Sun 3/4 TEENA 11 2/3
ER#is Mr. Yip Tai Him 4/4 11 1/1 3/3
WEB &4 Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong 4/4 1/1 TERAN/A 3/3
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A. BOARD OF DIRECTORS - continued

(7) Model Code for Securities Transactions
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
its code of conduct regarding Directors’ dealings in the
Company’s securities.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2012.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no
less exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees
Written Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees
who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-
sensitive information of the Company or its securities.

No incidence of non-compliance of the Employees Written
Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary. The Company Secretary reports to the
Chairman on corporate governance matters, and is responsible
for ensuring that procedures of the Board are followed, and
for facilitating communications among directors as well as with
shareholders and management.

The Company Secretary’s biography is set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile” of this report.
In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company
Secretary has undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 December 2012.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the
Group, including the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and development, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular
those may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
budgets, appointment of Directors and other significant financial
and operational matters.
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B. DELEGATION BY THE BOARD - continued

The day-to-day management, administration and operations
of the Group are delegated to the senior management. The
delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.
The Board will give directions to the senior management as to
their powers of management, and circumstances where they
should report back. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any decision making on significant transactions
or entering into any significant commitments on behalf of the
Company.

The senior management has an obligation to supply the Board
and its Committees adequate, complete and reliable information
in a timely manner to enable them to make informed decisions.
The Board and each Director have separate and independent
access to the senior management.

In addition, the Board has established three Committees, namely
the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Audit Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Group’s affairs. All these Committees are established with
defined written terms of reference which are published on the
Company’s website at www.wingleeholdings.com and on the
Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent
procedure for formulating policies on remuneration of the
directors and senior management of the Group. Details of the
remuneration of each Director of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2012 are set out in note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises one Executive Director,
namely Mr. Chow Tak Hung (Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee until 29 March 2012) and two Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Dr. Lau Yue Sun and Mr. Yip
Tai Him. Dr. Lau Yue Sun was appointed as Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee with effect from 29 March 2012. Mr.
Chow Tak Hung remained as a member of the Remuneration
Committee.
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C.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT - continued

Remuneration Committee - continued

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of Directors
and senior management. It is also responsible for establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her
associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration,
which remuneration will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions.

The Human Resources Department is responsible for
collection and administration of human resources data and
making recommendations to the Remuneration Committee for
consideration.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year
ended 31 December 2012 and the attendance record is set out
under the section headed “Directors’ Attendance Records” of this
report. The Remuneration Committee performed the following
work during the year:

(@) reviewed generally the remuneration policy (including for
Executive Directors) and structure of the Group;

(b) assessed the performance of the Executive Directors and
the senior management; and

(c) determined the remuneration packages as well as the
annual bonuses of the Executive Directors and the senior
management.
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D. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

(1)

()

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Reporting
The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment of annual and interim
reports, announcements on inside information and other
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other
regulatory requirements. The Directors acknowledge their
responsibility for preparing the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2012.

The senior management provides explanation and
information to the Board so as to enable the Board to make
an informed assessment of the financial information and
position of the Group put to the Board for approval.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the internal control
system of the Company. The Board is also responsible for
maintaining an adequate internal control system, including
determining the policies on corporate governance to
safeguard the interests of the shareholders and the assets of
the Company and, with the support of the Audit Committee,
reviewing the effectiveness of such system on an annual
basis.

The Board has conducted an annual review of the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2012. The senior management
reviews and evaluates the control process and monitors
any risk factors on a regular basis and reports to the Board
and the Audit Committee on any findings and measures to
address the variances and identified risks.
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D. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT - continued
(8) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Yip Tai Him (Chairman
of the Audit Committee who possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required by the Listing Rules),
Dr. Lau Yue Sun and Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong. None of the
members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing independent auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include review
of the financial information of the Group, review of the
relationship with and the terms of appointment of the
independent auditor, and review of the Group’s financial
reporting system, internal control system, risk management
system and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2012. The attendance records are
set out under the section headed “Directors’ Attendance
Records” of this report. The Audit Committee performed the
following work during the year:

(@) reviewed with the independent auditor of the Group’s
annual audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2012, and reviewed the unaudited
interim financial statements for the six months ended
30 June 2012, including the accounting principles and
accounting standards adopted with recommendations
made to the Board for approval;

(b) reviewed the changes in accounting standards and
assessed their potential impacts on the Group’s
financial statements;

(c) reviewed the Group’s internal control system and
related matters; and

(d) considered and made recommendations on the re-
appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the
independent auditor of the Group, and the terms of
engagement.
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D. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT - continued
(4) Independent Auditor and Auditor’s Remuneration
The statement of the independent auditor of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report”
on pages 36 to 37.

The remuneration paid to the Company’s independent
auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, in respect of audit
services and non-audit services for the year ended
31 December 2012 is set out below:

Type of services provided by the BRARE

Independent auditor Amount of fees

FHET

HK$’ 000

Audit services 1,480
Non-audit services

Reporting accountants (note) 2,876

Tax consultancy and compliance 30

Total 4,386

Note:

Act as reporting accountants in respect of the listing of Wing Lee
Property on the Stock Exchange (the nature of services include audit of
the financial information of the Property Group for each of the three years
ended 31 December 2011 and eight months ended 31 August 2012 (the
“Track Record Period”), preparation of accountants’ report for the Track
Record Period, issue of various comfort letters and other listing related
work).

E. COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Group also recognises the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which enable shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decision.
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E.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND

INVESTORS - continued

Shareholders’ meetings provide an opportunity for
communication between the Board and the shareholders.
The Chairman of the Board as well as the Chairmen of the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee or, in their absence, other members of the respective
Committees normally attend shareholders’ meetings of the
Company to answer shareholders’ questions. During the year
ended 31 December 2012, the Company held one shareholders’
meeting, the annual general meeting held on 15 June 2012. Six
members of the Board were present at this meeting to address to
shareholders’ enquiries.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Group
maintains a website where information on the Company’s
announcements, business developments and operations,
financial information and other information are posted.
Shareholders and investors may write directly to the Company at
its principal place of business in Hong Kong with any inquiries.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(1) Voting by Shareholders
To safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights,
separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings
on each substantial issue, including the election of individual
directors. Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any
vote of shareholders at a general meeting must be taken
by poll except where the Chairman of the meeting, in good
faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to
a procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a
show of hands. The poll voting results will be published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company after
the meeting.

(2) Convening of Special General Meetings and

Requisition by Shareholders

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to
convene a special general meeting (“SGM”). Shareholders
holding in aggregate of not less than one-tenth (10%) of the
paid up capital of the Company may send a written request
to the Board or the company secretary of the Company
to requisition an SGM for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. The written requisition, duly
signed by the shareholders concerned, must state the
purpose of the meeting and must be deposited at the
registered office of the Company.
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F. SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS - continued

(2)

3)

Convening of Special General Meetings and
Requisition by Shareholders - continued

The Company will take appropriate actions and make
necessary arrangements and the shareholders concerned
will be responsible for any expenses incurred in giving effect
thereto in accordance with the requirements under Section
74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies
Act”) once a valid requisition is received.

Procedures for Making Proposals at General
Meetings by Shareholders

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a
proposal (which may properly be put to the meeting) for
consideration at a general meeting of the Company:

(@) any members representing not less than one-twentieth
(5%) of the total voting rights of the Company on the
date of the requisition; or

(b) not less than 100 members holding shares in the
Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the
shareholders concerned, together with a statement with
respect to the matter referred to in the proposal must be
deposited at the registered office of the Company. The
Company will take appropriate action and make necessary
arrangements and the shareholders concerned will be
responsible for any expenses incurred in giving effect thereto
in accordance with the requirements under Sections 79
and 80 of the Companies Act once valid documents are
received.

As regards to proposing a person other than the retiring
Director for election as a Director in a general meeting,
please refer to the procedures available on the website of
the Company.

Shareholders may write directly to the Company at its
principal place of business in Hong Kong with any inquiries.
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
pages 38 and 39.

A 2012 interim dividend of 2.0 HK cents per share amounting to
HK$6,411,000 and a 2011 final dividend of 4.0 HK cents per share
amounting to HK$12,821,000 was paid to the shareholders during
the year. The Board does not recommend a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 105 of this report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the issued share capital
of the Company are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements. During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2012, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution consisted of contributed surplus of HK$24,930,000 and
retained profits of HK$260,918,000.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend,
or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium accounts.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the year, the Group acquired investment properties at a cost of
HK$27,351,000 (2011: HK$80,992,000). Details of the movements in
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in note
17 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
During the year, the Group invested HK$26,167,000 (2011:

HK$19,576,000) in property, plant and equipment. Details of the
movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Chow Tak Hung (Chairman)
Ms. Chow Woon Yin (Deputy Chairman)

Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Wong Siu Wah (redesignated from Executive Director
with effect from 18 March 2013)
(redesignated from Executive Director
with effect from 18 March 2013)

Ms. Chau Choi Fa

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Dr. Lau Yue Sun

Mr. Yip Tai Him

Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong

In accordance with Clauses 86 and 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Dr. Lau Yue Sun and Mr. Yip Tai Him will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Each of the Executive Directors of the Company has entered into
a service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on 1 October 2011 and either the Executive Director or
the Company may terminate the agreement by giving the other party
not less than three months’ notice in writing or by making a payment
of three months’ salary in lieu of the notice.
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(@) MARBEFREECLOETLZ EBIRZIFAE
(Mfn 1) :

EEnE

Name of Director

B A (1)
Mr. Chow Tak Hung (note 1)

AR+ (5E2)
Ms. Chau Choi Fa (note 2)
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Further, each of the Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company and is appointed for a period of one
year commencing on 1 April 2013 (in the case of the Non-executive
Directors) and on 6 May 2012 (in the case of the Independent Non-
executive Directors) and either the Non-executive Director or the
Independent Non-executive Director (as the case maybe) or the
Company (on the other hand) may terminate the appointment by
giving the other party not less than three months’ notice in writing or
by making a payment of three months’ fee in lieu of the notice.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors being proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract or letter of appointment with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS

IN SECURITIES
At 31 December 2012, the interests of the Directors and the chief

executives and their associates in the shares, underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations, as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”), or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed issuers and the SFO,
were as follows:

(@) Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each of the
Company (“Shares”):

EADA T

Ey £ NEER ROBE BREAZBOBEIL
Approximate

percentage of

Total the Company’s

Family Corporate number issued
interest interest of Shares share capital

- 222,374,255 222,374,255 69.38%
222,374,255 - 222,374,255 69.38%
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(1) BAEELE ARELEIREIELLTT
2 £ &5 Bl JBright Asia Holdings Limited
(REBRZESEMK L2z AR) B#
THEA60% » 20% K%20% 2 BB A °
Bright Asia Holdings Limited® ##& A A
F]222,374,255R F MR - RAR R Z &K
BAR  BEREERES RIS GO
1R ABright Asia Holdings Limited# 5 Z &
MR ERER

(2) RAREERETDERIELLT 2R REER
MR EEMER L2 Rk

(o) RARBREEEE (EERFHLAEED) (o)

BEETREZTFE
EENA M LB AR
Name of
associated

Name of Director
BE &

Mr. Chow Tak Hung
B 2+

Ms. Chow Woon Yin

BEAELL
Ms. Wong Siu Wah

BRI+
Ms. Chau Choi Fa

BB
Mr. Chow Tak Hung

B¥iE L
Ms. Chau Choi Fa

corporation

Bright Asia Holdings Limited
(I'Bright Asial) (Ff5E 1)
Bright Asia Holdings Limited
(“Bright Asia”) (Note 1)

Bright Asia
Bright Asia

Bright Asia
Bright Asia

Bright Asia
Bright Asia

XM b EE
Wing Lee Property

K Tl b EE
Wing Lee Property

Notes:

(V)

EEERE
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(1)  Mr. Chow Tak Hung, Ms. Chow Woon Yin and Ms. Wong Siu
Wah are directors and beneficial owners of 60%, 20% and 20%
respectively of the issued share capital of Bright Asia Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, which
beneficially owns 222,374,255 ordinary shares of the Company and
is the Company’s ultimate parent undertaking. Mr. Chow Tak Hung
is deemed under the SFO to be interested in the Shares held by
Bright Asia Holdings Limited.

(2)  Mr. Chow Tak Hung is the husband of Ms. Chau Choi Fa, and his
interests are therefore also the family interests of Ms. Chau Choi Fa.

Long positions in the issued share capital of the Company’s
associated corporations (as defined in the SFO):

B0 EEtE

Capacity/Nature
of interest

B

Beneficial

BEmiEm
Beneficial

gt o

Beneficial

Kk (fzE2)
Family interests
(Note 2)

EE R (MEE3)
Corporate interests
(Note 3)

Kk (fizE2)
Family interests
(Note 2)

i E
(FFt)

Number of
Shares
(description)

6,000 (& i %)
6,000 (ordinary)
2,000 (& AR)
2,000 (ordinary)

2,000 (& @AR)
2,000 (ordinary)

6,000 (E @)
6,000 (ordinary)

288,024,134 (& @A)
288,024,134 (ordinary)

288,024,134 (& @A)
288,024,134 (ordinary)

16 BB £
BEBITRAZ
BHOB DL
Approximate
percentage of
such associated
corporation’s
issued

share capital

60%
60%
20%
20%

20%
20%

60%
60%

74.58%
74.58%

74.58%
74.58%
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Notes:

1. Bright Asia is interested in 222,374,255 Shares, representing
approximately 69.38% of the Company’s issued shares. Bright Asia
is therefore a holding company (and ultimate parent undertaking) of
the Company, and an associated corporation of the Company for
the purposes of the SFO.

2. Mr. Chow Tak Hung is the husband of Ms. Chau Choi Fa, and his
interests are therefore also the family interests of Ms. Chau Choi Fa.

3. Bright Asia is interested directly and indirectly (through the
Company) in an aggregate of 288,024,134 shares of Wing Lee
Property, representing approximately 74.58% of the issued shares
of Wing Lee Property. Wing Lee Property is therefore a subsidiary of
Bright Asia, and an associated corporation of the Company for the
purposes of the SFO. Mr. Chow Tak Hung is interested in 60% of
the issued shares of Bright Asia. He is therefore deemed under the
SFO to be interested in Bright Asia’s interests in the 288,024,134
shares of Wing Lee Property.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS
TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note
27 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, no share options were granted under the share
option scheme by the Company. In addition, as at 1 January 2012
and 31 December 2012, there were no outstanding share options
under the share option scheme.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its holding
company or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the financial year or at any time during the
year.

There is no contract of significance (including any contract for the
provision of services) between the Company or any of its subsidiaries
and the controlling shareholder of the Company (as defined in the
Listing Rules) or any subsidiaries of the controlling shareholder.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company and its
subsidiaries had not entered into any connected transactions
(as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules). Subsequent
to 31 December 2012, upon the spin-off of the Property Group which
took place on 19 March 2013, Wing Lee Property ceased to be a
subsidiary of the Company.
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As a result of the spin-off, tenancy agreements between Morning
Star Industrial Company Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company) and Extra Rich Development Limited (a wholly owned
subsidiary of Wing Lee Property) for rental of premises comprising the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong became
continuing connected transactions of the Company. Details of these
continuing connected transactions are contained in the announcement
of the Company dated 19 March 2013. The Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. These continuing connected transactions will be
reviewed and reported on in accordance with the Listing Rules in the
financial statements of the Group for the year ending 31 December
2013.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Other than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain
Directors in the section headed “Directors and Chief Executives’
interests in Securities”, as recorded in the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO the following person had a notifiable interest in the issued
share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2012:

AN T E BT

FTERRERE B RnitE [EvEEE RAZBANBE D
Approximate

Total percentage

Name of Capacity/ number of of the Company’s
Substantial Shareholder Nature of Interest Shares issued share capital
Bright Asia BEmEm 222,374,255 69.38%
Bright Asia Beneficial 222,374,255 69.38%
ZEBYFHTES APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE

ARAERBBIFATEERE LIRS
BIBGRZREER 2B M FEHERE - XA
REMBBYIFATESTYR/BILAL -

DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of their independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.
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OTHER INFORMATION

Ms. Wong Siu Wah (“Ms. Wong”) and Ms. Chau Choi Fa (“Ms. Chau”),
two of the Non-executive Directors of the Company, held, either in
their personal names or through private companies jointly owned by
them, properties in Hong Kong held for personal investment (“Directors’
Personal Property Investments”). As one of the major business
segments of the Group is in property investment, the property interests
held by Ms. Wong and Ms. Chau may be regarded as a business which
potentially competes with that of the Group. The Directors’ Personal
Property Investments can be traced back to 2004, before the Group’s
property investment became a significant part of the Group’s business
in 2008. However, the portfolio of the Directors’ Personal Property
Investments throughout the relevant period was regarded as small as
compared with the property investment portfolio held by the Group,
in terms of both the number and the market value of the properties
held. Both Ms. Wong and Ms. Chau have no intention to significantly
increase the Directors’ Personal Property Investments going forward.
Subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company
spun-off the Property Group which carries out the property investment
business of the Group and as a result, similar disclosures will no longer
be necessary in connection with property interests for the financial year
ending 31 December 2013.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers was approximately 52.19% (2011: 32.37%) of the
Group’s total sales while the sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer was approximately 26.57% (2011: 10.37%) of the Group’s
total sales.

During the year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers was approximately 71.03% (2011: 63.15%) of
the Group’s total purchases while the purchases attributable to the
Group’s largest supplier was approximately 22.94% (2011: 15.27%) of
the Group’s total purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders, which to
the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital, had any interest in the share capital of the five
largest customers or suppliers of the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in
note 27 the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

WAIVER OF DIVIDENDS

The Company was not party to any arrangement under which a
shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2012.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$115,000.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Chow Tak Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong

28 March 2013
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TO THE MEMBERS OF WING LEE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wing Lee
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 38 to 104, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2012, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December
2012, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2013
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Continuing operation
Turnover
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit

Other income

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Changes in fair value of
investment properties

Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year from
continuing operation

Discontinued operation

Profit for the year from
discontinued operation

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences arising
on translation of foreign operation

Total comprehensive income for the year

P 5
NOTES

10
13

14

— = _

T-—F
2012
T
HK$’ 000

368,772

(248,388)

120,384
6,313
(9,992)
(72,544)
(4,752)

467
(530)

39,346
(15,482)

23,864

288,270

312,134

2,228

314,362

—F—F
2011
TET
HK$’ 000
(f&&51)
(Restated)

361,318
(250,059)

111,259
1,768
(5,529)
(67,775)
(6,267)

343
(344)

33,455
(5,803)

27,652

139,526

167,178

16,925

184,108
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Profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company:
— from continuing operation
— from discontinued operation

Profit for the year attributable
to non-controlling interests:
— from continuing operation
— from discontinued operation

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive
income attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share
From continuing and
discontinued operations
— Basic

From continuing operation
— Basic

mEETHWER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HE-_T——F+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

—E-——F
2012

P 5 TiER
NOTE HK$’ 000

24,538
288,270

312,808

(674)

(674)

312,134

314,984
(622)

314,362

16

97.5978 L
HK cents

7.6678 L
HK cents

—F—F
2011
TET
HK$’ 000
(f&&51)
(Restated)

28,390
139,526

167,916

(738)

(738)

167,178

184,628
(525)

184,103

49.0975 1
HK cents

8.3078 11l
HK cents
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Non-current assets
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments

Deposits paid for acquisition of property,

plant and equipment
Deposits paid for acquisition
of investment properties

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Taxation recoverable
Fixed deposits
Bank balances and cash

Disposal group classified as held
for distribution to owners

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Rental deposits received
Taxation payable
Bank loans — due within one year

Liabilities associated with
disposal group classified as
held for distribution to owners

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

P 5
NOTES

17
18
19

20
21

22
22

14

23

24

14

— = _

—E-—F

2012
TER
HK$’ 000

37,491
201,369
13,859

252,719

39,356
57,131
6,445
5,159
66,254

174,345

953,196

1,127,541

55,224

346
14,817
30,000

100,387

142,105

242,492

885,049

1,137,768

—F—F
2011
TAT
HK$’ 000

609,679
212,236
14,037
3,201

2,562

841,715

49,476
79,091

62,022
56,063

246,652

246,652

63,554

5,371
10,463
63,145

142,533

142,538

104,119

945,834
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HEBBEIRR R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
MRZZE——F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2012

B T
2012 2011
B = FET FET
NOTES HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

Non-current liabilities
Bank loans — due after one year 24 - 99,265
Deferred tax liabilities 25 14,091 18,022
14,091 117,287
1,123,677 828,547

Capital and reserves
Share capital 26 160,263 160,263
Reserves 964,602 668,850

Equity attributable to owners

of the Company 1,124,865 829,113
Non-controlling interests (1,188) (566)
1,123,677 828,547
REBF@N_Z The consolidated financial statements on pages 38 to 104 were

—=F=A-+ N \BRBULETIATRRES approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28

GRE

=
Chow Tal
=

Chairman

March 2013 and are signed on behalf of the Board by:

JE f s

k Hung Chow Woon Yin
/e
Deputy Chairman
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GARERDE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
HE-_FT——+=-"A=+—HI%E For the year ended 31 December 2012

ARARBERARE

Attributable to owners of the Company

Kt NEER MEiEE EXRE 44ER 2R
RE  EER RRIRE f ffE ffE fE REBER it ER @t
Property PRC Capital Non-
Share  Share  Special revaluation statutory Translation redemption ~ Retained controlling
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits Sub-total interests Total
TEr TR TER  TEn  TEx  TEr  TExr  TEnr  TEx  TER  TER
HKS'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
R-F-—-%-F-A At 1 January 2011 176,692 78815 1,946 10,141 4574 42997 14361 367,788 686,913 (41) 686,872
HEBNEREECERER Exchanged differences arising from
translation of foreign operation = = = = - 16,712 = - 16,712 213 16,925
EREA Proft for the year - - - - - - - 167916 167916 (738) 167,178
EE2EbE (R 28 Total comprehensive income
(expensg) for the year - - - - - 16,712 - 167916 184,628 (625) 184,103
BfiRE (H3k15) Dividend paid (note 15} - - - - - - - (1393%) (13935 - (13,93)
BERGERRD Share repurchased and cancelled (16,429) - - - - - 16420 (8493  (28499) - (2849
RZF-—FtZA=1-A At 31 December 2011 160,263 78,815 1,545 10,141 4574 59709 30790 483276 829,113 (o66) 828,547
BEBNEBEECERER Exchange differences arising from
translation of foreign operation - - - - - 2,176 - - 2,176 52 2,228
ERET Profit for the year - - - - - - - 312808 312,808 (674) 312,134
EE2E4E (Rx) 28 Total comprehensive income
(expensg) for the year - - - - - 2,176 - 312808 314,984 (622) 314,362
BfiRE (315) Dividend paid note 15} - - - - - - - (1923 (19239 - (1923%2)
RZE-ZF+ZA=1-A At 31 December 2012 160,263 78,815 1,545 10,141 4574 61,885 30790 776,852 1124865  (1,188) 1,128,677

FRlFEE - ANEtFESESEAE (AR EE
B B /8 2 B B £ T P 3 17 A AN T 1 B2 P e B Y
RAZBRAEEZZR) BEXRHBEER-TZ
FERZFETNFEBBITERT NIREAL M
EX o

REFEA ((HE)IERECEZBEZE
BREZRRE  PEMBLARART —BIRZX
EfRE (BRORBRER) AEREBZER
TR - ZERBZBERTETEMBARZ
EZeRmBERATENBRRZHRHEMN - T
BRA10% - AERHEA AR BHEEEFER (W0
B)RAEBEAMCETIAERBERN - X
BRESDEBEMBETHABRETHEMH
BRRZENER -
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The special reserve arose pursuant to a group reorganisation in 1997
being the difference between the nominal amount of the share capital
issued by the Company in exchange for the shares of the subsidiaries
and the nominal amount of the share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired, capital reduction and bonus issue by way of capitalisation of
the reserve in 2005 and 2006.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign
investment enterprises in Mainland China (the “PRC”), the PRC
subsidiaries are required to maintain a statutory reserve fund,
comprising an enterprise expansion fund. The statutory reserve funds
are non-distributable. Appropriations to such reserves are made out
of net profit after taxation annually of the PRC subsidiaries at the
discretion of the board of directors of the subsidiary with a minimum
of 10%. The statutory surplus reserve fund can be used to make up
prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into capital
by means of a capitalisation issue. The enterprise expansion fund is
used for expanding the capital base of the PRC subsidiaries by means
of capitalisation issue.
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
— from continuing operation
— from discontinued operation

Adjustments for:

(Reversal of allowance) allowance for inventories

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Bad debts written off
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Net changes in fair value of investment properties

Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Interest expenses

Interest income

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital
Decrease (increase) in inventories
Decrease in trade and other receivables
(Decrease) increase in trade and other
payables and rental deposits received

Net cash generated from operations
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Withdrawal of fixed deposits
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Interest received
Placement of fixed deposits
Purchase of investment properties
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment
Deposits paid for acquisition
of investment properties

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

RERERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
BE-_FT——F+=-A=+—HI%E For the year ended 31 December 2012

—E-——F
2012
FET
HK$’ 000

39,346
290,044

329,390

(1,090)
354
2,031
30,563

(292,601)

(5,248)
2,536
(934)

65,001
11,593
17,289

(2,116)

91,767
(12,723)
(4,045)

74,999

167,222
8,400

7,307
917
(140,349)
(24,789)
(24,927)

(6,219)

—F—F
2011
TExT
HK$’ 000

33,455
142,500

175,955

1,853
341
26,518

(137,607)

(1,056)
1,638
(284)

67,358
(1,116)
6,530

1,210

73,982
(6,762)
(2,500)

64,720

101,000
1,056
284
(57,306)
(80,492)
(19,576)
(3,124)
(2,562)

(60,720)
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GERERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HE-T——F+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

—E-—F —T——%
2012 2011
B 2 T FAT
NOTE HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
MEEH FINANCING ACTIVITIES
HIBIRITER New bank loans raised 15,000 47,635
EEIRITER Repayment of bank loans (21,176) (27,706)
BRI S Dividend paid (19,230) (13,935)
BEARFE Interest paid (2,462) (1,638)
8 B A% 19 1+ 3K Payment on repurchase of shares - (28,493)
BEEBFEAZ NET CASH USED IN
IR & F5 FINANCING ACTIVITIES (27,868) (24,137)
ReRkBLEMEER NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
B O A ) FE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 40,912 (20,137)
R—A—BzR&Rk CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
He&EEIEAR 1 JANUARY 56,063 72,291
INETE RSB 2 & EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES 568 3,909
Rt+-—A=+—HzE& CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
FIREEEEE 31 DECEMBER 97,543 56,063
HeMRE&EEIER ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES
EF 2O OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RTEFMRS Bank balances and cash 66,254 56,063
SAFBEUESIKTHE A Bank balances and cash
ZHEHRREEZ included in a disposal group
RTHEFNERS classified as held for distribution
to owners 14 31,289 -

97,543 56,063

44 £ 2012 ANNUAL REPORT
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1.

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability. Its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its
immediate holding company and ultimate holding company is
Bright Asia Holdings Limited, a company which was incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the corporate information of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the functional currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the major subsidiaries are set out in note 32.

As discussed in more detail in notes 14 and 34, in 2012,
the Group has committed to, and initiated an exercise for
the distribution of its properties investment operation. The
distribution was through the separate listing of Wing Lee Property
Investments Limited (“Wing Lee Property”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Property Group”) on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, which principally carries out the
Group’s properties investment operation in Hong Kong and the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), by way of introduction,
through distribution in specie to the Company’s shareholders (the
“Spin-Off Exercise”). The Spin-Off Exercise was subsequently
completed on 19 March 20183.

As at 31 December 2012, the directors of the Company
considered that it was highly probably that such business would
be distributed to the Company’s shareholders within the next
twelve months. As a result, the Property Group was classified
as disposal group held for distribution as at that date and
presented as a discontinued operation in these consolidated
financial statements. Accordingly, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2011
has been restated to present such business as discontinued
operation and the assets and liabilities attributable to Property
Group have been classified as disposal group held for distribution
to owners and are presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012. Such
re-presentation has no impact on the consolidated statement of
financial position relating to prior years.

F# 2012 ANNUAL REPORT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following

amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial instruments:
Disclosures — Transfers
of financial assets

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and position for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

The Group has not early applied the following Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and HKFRSs, amendments and

interpretations (“INTs”) (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“new and revised HKFRSs”) that have been issued but are not yet

effective:
Amendments to HKFRSs
Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 32

HK(IFRIC) - INT 20

Annual improvement to HKFRSs 2009 -
2011 cycle!

Disclosures - Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities'

Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9 and
transition disclosures?

Consolidated financial statements, joint
arrangements and disclosure of interest in
other entities: Transition guidance'

Investment entities*

Financial instruments?

Consolidated financial statements'
Joint arrangements’

Disclosure of interests in other entities'
Fair value measurement’

Employee benefits’

Separate financial statements'
Investments in associates and joint ventures'

Presentation of items of other comprehensive
income®

Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities*

Stripping costs in the production phase of
a surface mine'
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) - continued

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2012.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014.

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income”

The amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of items of
other comprehensive income” introduce new terminology
for the statement of comprehensive income and income
statement. Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a ‘statement of
comprehensive income’ is renamed as a ‘statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income’ and an ‘income
statement’ is renamed as a ‘statement of profit or loss’. The
amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in either a single statement
or in two separate but consecutive statements. However, the
amendments to HKAS 1 require items of other comprehensive
income to be grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not
be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that
may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific
conditions are met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive
income is required to be allocated on the same basis — the
amendments do not change the option to present items of other
comprehensive income either before tax or net of tax.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the amendments
to HKAS 1 will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning 1 January 2013 and
the application of the amendments will have no material impact
on the results and presentation in the consolidated financial
statements in the future accounting periods.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) - continued

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements.
The standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to
both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument
items for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements,
except in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those in
the current standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative
disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy currently
required for financial instruments only under HKFRS 7 “Financial
instruments: Disclosures” will be extended by HKFRS 13 to cover
all assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted. The directors
anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be adopted in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the annual period beginning
1 January 2013 and that the application of the new standard
is unlikely to affect the amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements but result in more extensive disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements.

New and revised standards on consolidation and
disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued, including
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these standards are described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated and
separate financial statements” that deal with consolidated
financial statements. HK(SIC) — INT 12 “Consolidation — Special
purpose entities” will be withdrawn upon the effective date
of HKFRS 10. Under HKFRS 10, there is only one basis for
consolidation, that is, control. In addition, HKFRS 10 includes a
new definition of control that contains three elements: (a) power
over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s
returns. Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal
with complex scenarios.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) - continued

New and revised standards on consolidation and
disclosures - continued

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities
that have interests in subsidiaries. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the
current standards.

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 were issued to clarify certain transitional guidance
on the application of these five HKFRSs for the first time. These
five standards, together with the amendments relating to the
transitional guidance, are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013 with earlier application permitted
provided that all of these standards are applied at the same time.

These five standards, together with the amendments relating
to the transitional guidance, are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 with earlier application
permitted provided that all of these standards are applied at the
same time.

The directors of the Company anticipate that these five standards
will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the annual period beginning 1 January 2013. The directors
of the Company have assessed the control in respect of its
subsidiaries under the new definition in the new and revised
HKFRSs. The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these five standards is unlikely to have significant
impact on amounts in connection to subsidiaries of the Company
currently reported in the consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of

the other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the results and financial position of the Group.
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties that are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

The principle accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

- continued

Non-current assets held for distribution to owners
Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale or distribution if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sale or distribution transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the sale or distribution is highly probable and the non-
current asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale
in its present condition. Management must be committed to
the sale or distribution, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale or distribution plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale or
distribution when the criteria described above are met, regardless
of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in its
former subsidiary after the sale or distribution.

Other than investment properties, other non-current assets (and
disposal groups) classified as held for sale or distribution are
measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

- continued

Revenue recognition - continued

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
property are included in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land (classified
as finance leases) and buildings held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

- continued

Property, plant and equipment - continued

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

- continued

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits schemes
including, state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered services entitling them
to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before taxation’ as reported in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

- continued

Taxation - continued

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such investment
properties are measured in accordance with the above general
principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the expected manner
as to how the properties will be recovered).

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities. Current and deferred tax are recognised in
profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over
the lease term.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

- continued

Leasing - continued

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight line basis except for those that are
classified and accounted for as investment properties under the
fair value model. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the entire lease
is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.



WING LEE HOLDING

e B WK MR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TESHEER-&

SNEE— &
HEEKHRENMEEEHRAMELZER
ZRNREELRHENBETER - B8R
RNHESRZIFEEIR R EL 2 & X 8
AR -

REFEEMBHERME - AEBEINER
ZEERBBERREHRZIRITERRER
AEEZZ2HE® (BT - WARER
Bz Rz FHERBE - BRIFERRZ B
BAEKE)  RUBERT  NEARSBEH
ZIRITER - FIEAZENZR (WA) JhkE
RREm s BIYKD (REREB) - BRHE
RER(WA) DREME2EKRRT ERL
RitEREAZRERE(WER - BIERE
B IRER ) F -

EHMITA
CREENERAEDIN -HEEERKA
TRAANBXZ —HTRERSMBHRARRE

7
B

TREENSBRABIVIEAFENE -
WEAETEREENSRABEREGZ
RBRARVVRERRF T A NGR B ERE
EXERABZIATFENRGEERE) -

AEEZEMEENBASERREWKRIA
Hp—B 28R TeREEZHEERH
B R HERREE - FANERESE
BEXHEZSRMEE IR 5 ARE LR
REMERTER - ERBEEERHEEIER
R E R B P P e < i R 2R A XA
BEZSREEEENIHE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

- continued

Foreign currencies - continued

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

- continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
including trade and other receivables, fixed deposits and bank
balances and cash are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses
(see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets (loans and receivables) are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

e  breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

- continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of
90 days, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss. When trade receivables are considered uncollectible,
they are written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit
or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

- continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group entities after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the group entities are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and bank
loans are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

- continued

Financial instruments - continued

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
- continued

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
— continued

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the directors of the Company
have reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolio and
concluded that certain of the Group’s investment properties
situated in the PRC amounting to approximately HK$34,441,000
(2011: HK$33,865,000) are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time, rather than
through sale. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred
taxation on these investment properties, the directors of the
Company have determined that the presumption of the carrying
amounts of these investment properties measured using the fair
value model are recovered entirely through sale is rebutted. As a
result, the Group has not recognised any deferred taxes on land
appreciation tax on changes in fair value of these investment
properties but has only recognised deferred taxes on enterprise
income tax.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Income tax

At 31 December 2012, no deferred tax asset are recognised
in relation to unused tax losses of approximately HK$415,000
(2011: HK$405,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future assessable profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available in the future. In
cases where the actual future assessable profits generated are
more than expected, recognition of a deferred tax asset may
arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in
which such recognition takes place.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
- continued
Key sources of estimation uncertainty — continued

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The management determines the estimated useful lives
and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives of the property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in circumstances, for example
assets lasting longer or shorter than expected or technical
innovation. Management will revise the expected useful lives
and depreciation method for classes of property, plant and
equipment where actual useful lives are identified to be different
from the previously estimated lives and management may also
need to write-off or write down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold in the period
when such events take place. The aggregate carrying amount
of the property, plant and equipment (including continuing
and discontinued operations) as at 31 December 2012 is
HK$208,297,000 (2011: HK$212,236,000) (see notes 14
and 18).

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated statement
of financial position at 31 December 2012 and 31 December
2011 at their fair value as disclosed in notes 14 and 17. The fair
value was based on a valuation on these properties conducted
by an independent firm of professional valuers using property
valuation techniques which involve certain assumptions of market
conditions. Changes to these assumptions and inputs would
result in changes in the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties and corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain
or loss reported in profit or loss.
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5.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation of
the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the bank loans as disclosed in note 24, net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained
profits.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors of the Company, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-back as well as debt
raising. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from the
prior year.

ﬁ:ﬁI,ﬁ; 6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
ERI AR Categories of financial instruments
—E——F —T—F
2012 2011
FERT FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TREE Financial assets
ERREWRIE (B Loans and receivables (including cash and
RekBFEEEER) cash equivalents) 121,894 185,152
LEAE Financial liabilities
B 55 PR At amortised cost 48,397 187,580
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Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, fixed deposits, bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables and bank loans. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include market
risk (foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies
- continued

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate in relation to
fixed-rate bank deposits. The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances and
bank loans (see note 24 for details of these borrowings). It is the
Group’s policy to keep its loans at floating rates of interest so as
to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rate (“HIBOR”)
arising from the Group’s Hong Kong dollar denominated
borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank balances
and bank loans. The analysis is prepared assuming the bank
balances and bank loans at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. The basis point increase
or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

For variable-rate bank balances, if the interest rates had been 50
basis points (2011: 50 basis points) higher and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 December 2012 would increase by HK$331,000 (2011:
increase by HK$280,000). if the interest rates had been dropped
to zero (2011: zero) and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2012 would decrease by HK$180,000 (2011: decrease by
HK$129,000).

For variable-rate bank loans, if the interest rates had been 50
basis points (2011: 50 basis points) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2012 would decrease/increase by
HK$125,000 (2011: decrease/increase by HK$560,000).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as
the exposure at the end of the reporting period do not reflect the
exposure during the year.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies
- continued

Market risk — continued

Foreign currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
bank balances and trade receivables that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedge
policy. In order to mitigate the foreign currency risk, management
closely monitors such risks and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets at the end of the reporting period
are disclosed in respective notes. No sensitivity analysis of
foreign currency risk is presented as majority of the Group’s
foreign currency financial assets and liabilities are denominated
in United States dollars in the respective group entities and Hong
Kong dollars is pegged to United States dollars, hence, the
Group’s foreign currency exposure is not significant.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties arises from the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
receivables. The Group has concentration of credit risk on
certain global electronic companies, as 26.6% (2011: 10.4%)
and 52.2% (2011: 32.4%) of the total trade receivables was
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers, respectively, within the manufacture of and trading
in electronic components. In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies
- continued

Credit risk — continued

The credit risk on bank balances and fixed deposits are limited
because the majority of the counterparties are comprising
a number of banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank loans and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has available unutilised
bank loan facilities of approximately HK$15,000,000 (2011:
HK$5,000,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the earliest time band regardless of the probability
of the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates
for other financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from the interest rate at the end of the
reporting period.
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6. TRMITAE-& 6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
REREEREREE & Financial risk management objectives and policies
- continued

B E L E & Liquidity risk — continued
nErs  EXY AERRE  REE
ERAZE ZOMMBA 123MEA MEREIE  1E5F  SENL RELE hg
Weighted On
average  demand Total Total
effective or less than 1-3 3 months undiscounted  carrying

interestrate 1 month ~ months  to1year 1-5years >5years cashflows  amount
TEr ThEx TEx  TEx TEr TEx TEx
% HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

WZE-ZF+ZA=1+-H Asat31 December 2012

HTEemeE Non-derivative financial liabilities
BOREREREE Trade and other payables - 12,380 6,017 = = - 18397 18307
FHHERTER (M) Variable rate bank loans (note) 154 30,000 = = = - 30000 30,000
42,380 6,017 - - - 48,397 48,397
AZE-—F+ZB=t-H Asat31 December 2011
FiEeREE Non-derivative financial liabilities
BOREEAEE Trade and other payables - 8679 16,491 S - - 25170 25170
FHHNERTER () Variable rate bank loans (note) 112 51,079 2462 11121 58753 46383 169798 162,410
59,758 18,953 11,121 58,753 46,383 194,968 187,580
Mzt : REBEFAZREESRIPBRE IR — Note: Pursuant to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 “Presentation of financial
ERAE RS A BER ZRER R E statements — Classification by the borrow of a term loan that
BERzHE]  BRAEGESE T B Contains Repayment on Demand Clause”, term loans include
AN E AR RET BE R ESRIB R 2 IRR 2 E B a clause that gives the lender the unconditional right to call the
EXSBARBDARE MAEEKRERKESR loans at any time should be classified by the borrower as current
B ZIRITER T BIER LB BB ST liabilities. Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
2 [EREREE | BHETRN - REBRR included in the “repayable on demand” time band in the above
HHRERZEEESH N4 - FER maturity analysis and the carrying amount recognised by the
BZERITERGIRA TSR 2 EEHE Group at the end of the reporting period is set out in note 24.
AR HAR 2 e B BIfEE ¢ The directors of the Company believe that such bank loans will

be repaid after the end of the reporting period in accordance with
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements as
follows:
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R s D EE
S TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
Financial risk management objectives and policies
- continued
Liquidity risk — continued

RELIR
RERE RIREHR
B ZEREE
Total Total
undiscounted carrying
cashflow amount
FHET FET
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
As at 31 December 2012
Bank loans to be repaid
Within one year 30,530 30,000
As at 31 December 2011
Bank loans to be repaid
Within one year 47,406 45,560
In more than one year but not
more than five years 68,652 63,728
Over five years 54,726 53,122
170,784 162,410

The amounts included above for variable rate bank loans are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to
those estimates of interest rates determined with reference to the
interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are determined
in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of all financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised
cost at the respective end of the reporting periods approximate
their corresponding fair values.
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operations are organised into two operating
divisions namely manufacture of and trading in electronic
components and properties investment. These divisions are
based on the information reported to the chief operating decision
maker.

The executive directors of the Company (the “Executive
Directors”) have been identified as the chief operating decision
maker. The Executive Directors review the Group’s internal
reporting in order to assess performance and allocate resources.

Manufacture of and trading -
in electronic components

manufacture of and trading in
electronic components in
the PRC and Hong Kong
(continuing operation)

Properties investment — investments in properties in
Hong Kong and the PRC
(discontinued operation)

The Property Group engages in properties investment business,
principally the leasing of completed commercial and residential
properties in Hong Kong and the PRC. As discussed in note
14, after the spin-off and separate listing of the Property Group
on the Stock Exchange, the Group no longer carried on the
business of properties investment. As the Group had decided
and committed to a plan to distribute the properties investment
business at 31 December 2012, the properties investment
division of the Group is classified as a discontinued operation of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
operating segment.

R s D EE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Segment revenues and results

For the year ended
31 December 2012

TURNOVER
External sales
Inter-segment sales
Eliminations

RESULTS

Segment results
Unallocated income
Unallocated expenses
Finance costs

Profit before taxation

&
REEK—
ETEHMH
HEREE
Continuing
operation -
Manufacture
of and
trading in
electronic
components
FHET
HK$’ 000

368,772

368,772

37,592
6,313
(4,029)

(530)

39,346

BRI
HERB -
MERE

Discontinued
operation -
Properties
investment
FHET

HK$’ 000

21,577
2,636
(2,636)

21,677

298,461
4,896
(11,307)
(2,006)

290,044
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7.

DHEER &
DEWBRAREE-E

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued
Segment revenues and results — continued

&
R —
BEFEIHMH
HERES
Continuing
operation -
Manufacture
of and
trading in
electronic
components
FET
HK$’ 000
BEr—FET——Ff+—-f For the year ended
=+ —HIFE 371 December 2011
X TURNOVER
HINEE External sales 361,318
D EEEE Inter-segment sales =
B g Eliminations -
361,318
ES RESULTS
D EEE Segment results 34,130
RO BLUA Unallocated income 1,768
ROBLFHX Unallocated expenses (2,099)
& R AR Finance costs (344)
B 350 A 7 Profit before taxation 33,455

REDER 2 &R BRI SRR 2 AR B
SETBRERARR o 2 80 A5 % 2 &P AT RER 2
B BREARDERRITHRA 115
DEREREFEREMARTESTERZE
S

F 3| 2012 ANNUAL REPORT

2#&1
MERE

Discontinued
operation -
Properties
investment
FHET

HK$’ 000

18,568
1,860
(1,860)

18,568

143,732
62

(1,294)

142,500

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. Segment
profit represents the profit earned by each segment without
allocation of central administration costs. This is the measure
reported to the Executive Directors for the purposes of resource

allocation and performance assessment.



(P
ITED _
e R M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. DHEHER-& 7. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued
DHEERERE Segment assets and liabilities
LTAURLEYEEIS A AEBEERAE The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities
Fakink by operating segment:
—E——F —T——F
2012 2011
TR Tl
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
DEPEE SEGMENT ASSETS
EFEHHRNEREE Manufacture of and trading
in electronic components 420,135 432,560
ROBREE Unallocated assets 6,929 4,756
427,064 437,316
MERE Properties investment 953,196 651,051
REEE Consolidated assets 1,380,260 1,088,367
ﬁ%lliafa% SEGMENT LIABILITIES
TERM RS Manufacture of and trading
in electronic components 55,165 62,929
KoL E Unallocated liabilities 59,313 54,533
114,478 117,462
MEKRE Properties investment 142,105 142,358
LEAE Consolidated liabilities 256,583 259,820

ABERSBRIBESEERTEDIL For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and

allocating resources between segments:

° @;iiiz«wéﬁﬁ)gggg‘gﬁz«%%ﬁégﬁ e all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
By AETEMRBERIET certain prepayments and bank balances and cash held by
ZRIRE AR AU E FEIE SN - Pﬁﬁﬁ@ the respective head offices of continuing and discontinued
PR ERESER & operations and taxation recoverable; and

e KBREBELKEEBNMDRIEKEERRK e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than

ZERHAz2E8E  MESELBZIELER liabilities of the respective head offices of continuing and

IHAE - RITERNREMFEIN - G discontinued operations, deferred tax liabilities, bank loans
BEHIRELEDEL - and taxation payable from both segments.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Other segment information

For the year ended
31 December 2012

Amounts included in the measure
of segment profit:

Depreciation and amortisation
Net changes in fair value
of investment properties
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Reversal of allowance for inventories

For the year ended
31 December 2011

Amounts included in the measure
of segment profit:

Depreciation and amortisation
Net changes in fair value
of investment properties
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Allowance for inventories

&
REEB—
EFEMM
BEREER
Continuing
operation -
Manufacture
of and
trading in
electronic
components
FHET
HK$’ 000

29,123
467

1,124
(1,090)

24,916
343

1,056
1,853

2&1
K-
MERE

Discontinued
operation -
Properties
investment

TR
HK$’ 000

1,794
292,134

4,124

1,943

137,264
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued
Geographical information

The Group’s operations are mainly situated in Hong Kong and
the PRC. The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
turnover from continuing operation by the location of customers
and the Group’s non-current assets by geographical location of
assets relating to continuing operation.

HIREFE4S
Turnover from
external customers

FRBEE

Non-current assets

—F-=F —t —E-=F e
2012 2011 2012 2011
FET FET FET FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
(B3E)

(Note)

171,569 113,978 4,297 872
46,329 68,149 248,422 251,818
48,690 62,509 TEAN/A A58 FAN/A
32,124 35,134 TEAN/A 38 FAN/A
24,278 24,472 TEAN/A 38 FAN/A
45,782 57,076 T3 FAN/A 3 FAN/A
368,772 361,318 252,719 252,690

Note: At 31 December 2011, non-current assets excluded those related
to discontinued operation.

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2012, one customer from the
segment of manufacture of and trading in electronic components
contributed HK$97,995,000 (2011: HK$39,387,000) of the total
turnover of the Group, which is over 10% of the total turnover of
the Group for the year.
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Interest on bank deposits

Gain on disposal of
property, plant and
equipment

Net exchange gain

Others

Interest on bank
borrowings wholly
repayable:

— within five years
- over five years

OTHER INCOME

FEEEEYB BRIEREER

Continuing operation Discontinued operation
—E-CF —E——F —E-CF —E——F
2012 2011 2012 2011
TER FAET THET FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
280 222 654 62
1,124 1,056 4,124 -
2,656 S - =
2,253 490 118 -
6,313 1,768 4,896 62

FINANCE COSTS
FEKEEYB BRIELEER

Continuing operation Discontinued operation
—EF-=F —F——% —F-=F —F——F
2012 2011 2012 2011
TER FHET TER FERT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
530 344 1,488 852
- = 518 442
530 344 2,006 1,294
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10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

BFELEER BRI EER
Continuing operation Discontinued operation
—E-CF —E——%F —E-CF —T——F
2012 2011 2012 2011
TER TET THET TET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Profit before taxation has
been arrived at after
charging (crediting):
Directors’ and chief
executive’s
remuneration (note 11) 6,464 5,330 4,196 3,879
Other staff’s retirement
benefits scheme
contributions 2,692 3,147 102 46
Other staff costs 76,851 70,701 4,168 1,374
86,007 79,178 8,466 5,299
Gross rental income (2,163) (2,050) (21,577) (18,568)
Less: outgoings 486 468 1,308 3,025
(1,677) (1,582) (20,269) (15,543)
(Reversal of allowance)
allowance for
inventories (1,090) 1,853 - -
Amortisation of prepaid
lease payments 354 341 - -
Auditor’s remuneration 1,000 917 480 363
Bad debts written off 2,031 - - -
Cost of inventories
recognised as expense
(including reversal of
allowance for inventories
of HK$1,090,000 (2011:
allowance for inventories
of HK$1,853,000)) 248,388 250,059 - =
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 28,769 24,575 1,794 1,943
Expenses in relation to the
listing of Wing Lee
Property (included in
other expenses) 2,721 - 11,184 -
Net exchange (gains)
losses (included in other
income/expenses) (2,656) 6,267 - -
Operating lease rentals
in respect of
rented premises 130 227 60 -
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B(EXER)2ERFEZKEREER

REMUNERATION

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EXHek HERRER RIKER EEHM
ik BE  2RBRA BE L3 ok
Performance Retirement
Basic related benefits Total
salaries and incentive scheme directors’
Fees  allowances bonus contributions  emoluments
TET THT THET THET THT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
(FE)
(Note)
2012
Executive Directors
Mr. Chow Tak Hung = 1,158 3,005 14 4177
Ms. Chow Woon Yin - 1,158 755 14 1,927
Ms. Wong Siu Wah
(redesignated with effect from
18 March 2013) - 1,158 1,105 6 2,269
Ms. Chau Choi Fa
(redesignated with effect from
18 March 2013) - 1,158 755 14 1,927
Independent Non-executive
Directors
Dr. Lau Yue Sun 120 - - - 120
Mr. Yip Tai Him 120 - - - 120
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong 120 = = = 120
360 4,632 5,620 48 10,660
2011
Executive Directors
Mr. Chow Tak Hung = 1,248 1,900 12 3,160
Ms. Chow Woon Yin - 1,248 550 12 1,810
Ms. Wong Siu Wah = 1,248 800 21 2,069
Ms. Chau Choi Fa - 1,248 550 12 1,810
Independent Non-executive
Directors
Dr. Lau Yue Sun 120 - - - 120
Mr. Yip Tai Him 120 - - - 120
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong 120 = = = 120
360 4,992 3,800 57 9,209

Note: The performance related incentive bonus payment is determined
with reference to the operating results and individual performance

for each year by the board of directors of the Company (the

“Board”).
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

REMUNERATION - continued

Mr. Chow Tak Hung is also the chief executive of the Company
(the “Chief Executive”) and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as the Chief
Executive.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals, including directors and employees, as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office for both years. No directors waived any emoluments for
both years.

12. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
The aggregate emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
included four (2011: four) Executive Directors and the Chief
Executive whose emoluments are set out above. The aggregate
emoluments of the remaining one (2011: one) highest paid
individual is as follows:

—E-C—F —F——F
2012 2011
F&T FH&T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BN e N Basic salary and allowances 248 272
B2 R IRFE RS < BB TEAL Performance related incentive bonus 3,372 2,742
RONAEF 5T 8] 50 Retirement benefits scheme contributions 12 12
3,632 3,026
FMTIRATSHEN - The emoluments were within the following bands:
EEHE

Number of employees
—E——F —T——F
2012 2011
3,000,001% 7T £3,500,0007 7T HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 - 1
3,500,001 7T £4,000,000/% 7T HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 1 -
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13. B8 13. TAXATION
FEREER ERIEREER
Continuing Discontinued
operation operation
—E-—F —E——F —E--F —E——F
2012 2011 2012 2011
TAR FET TET FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
REAFIIE - Current tax:
B8 Hong Kong 2,713 4,077 1,568 1,351
REPEMER PRC Enterprise
Income Tax 3,955 1,671 36 30
6,668 5,748 1,604 1,381

BAEFEIR(B%) &8 - Under(over)provision

in prior years:

55 Hong Kong 935 63 (71) =
FETEMER PRC Enterprise
Income Tax 7,896 340 - -
8,831 403 (71) _
EERITE (M 3E25) - Deferred tax (note 25):
REE Current year (17) (348) 241 1,593
15,482 5,803 1,774 2,974
EENE ?Rﬁzﬂﬁﬁﬁnﬂ‘g R EF#16.5% Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
R E assessable profit for both years.
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1 #918,375,000/ 7T ([F1 /) - AEEE
REBIABABEERIRERYE  WHB B
B 1E 1 B8 17 e B M AR 0 #£519,100,000
BT (BOURBHEEFEZERNGEN) - AR
REZEEBRAREHIRE AEEERNAQF
MRBZEE KMEZEREBERFTEH
ZHBARIRZEFE 2 ERF G BE
ZREFFAR -ARREERE  ZITHE
BRI BN At AEBERE
E-_E——_F+-_A=+—"HBIFER=
ZENEREEE_T-F,/ ——FE
2 R EEFH11,276,0008 7T 2 # — %
BEMMBEEEREBEIS BEZEHKE
MR B AL RZERBTIEME
THERDATR - WEEREBEBEZIER
DR PSR ABEHZBRBEREATERER
£8 -

BEFEARKMBECEMREDE (%
FISHBUE]D) REEMEPOEERMRTE - &
MBARNREA _TTN\F-—A—BES
25% °

AETHENBAR AR EEAREERTR
FREZPEARIMBEAMEHAR BB
= FRAPKE50% ° RIBFEERBFIE -
BTZETRNBARIZRIEERNAE
M WEREBEE=ZE—=—F+=_A=+—H
IFERK -HEZE——FR_F—F
+ZA=+—HILFE FENBARE=E
RARELZEBE -

13. TAXATION - continued

The Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (“IRD”) is conducting
a tax audit to the Group for the years of assessment back
from 2004/05. The IRD issued additional assessments for the
years from 2004/05 to 2006/07 demand for an aggregate of
approximately HK$18,375,000 (the “Assessments”) to one
of the Company’s subsidiaries mainly in connection with the
pricing policy of its intergroup transactions of the trading and
manufacturing operations in these years. The Group lodged
objections to the IRD against the Assessments and has made
partial payments in the aggregate of HK$9,100,000 to the
IRD temporarily (part of which was in the form of tax reserve
certificates). The directors of the Company would propose to the
IRD to adjust the pricing of the intercompany transactions and
thus the assessable profits of its subsidiaries in Hong Kong and
the PRC were proposed to be adjusted based on the proposal
in these years. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, it
should be a valid case to pursue, and as a result, the Group has
made a further provision of HK$11,276,000 together with related
potential tax penalty for the assessment years from 2004/05 to
2010/11 during the year ended 31 December 2012. Up to the
date of these consolidated financial statements, the negotiations
on these tax assessments had not yet concluded. In the event
where the final settlement of the tax audit is less than the amount
aforementioned, the excess balance should be refundable to the
Group.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1
January 2008 onwards.

Certain PRC subsidiaries are entitled to exemption from PRC
income tax for two years commencing from their first profit-
making year, followed by a 50% reduction for the next three
years. The tax concession given to these PRC subsidiaries
remains effective under the new EIT Law and is expired by the
end of 2012. For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011,
the PRC subsidiaries was under 50% reduction tax concession.
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13.

14.

BiE—E&

BRIBEGZEEHARER  AFEFBELEER
ZRIES N RSB S EBRBANRT 25
BRanT -

13. TAXATION - continued

The charge for the year from continuing operation is reconciled
to the profit before taxation from continuing operation per the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows:

—F-=F —F——F
2012 2011
THExT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FIBAS TS 2 BRBLR R T Profit before taxation from
continuing operation 39,346 33,455
REAHER5%TE 2B Y Tax charge at applicable tax rate at 25% 9,837 8,364
MBBmEEBERRBAZ Tax effect of income not taxable
MR for tax purpose (1,432) (109)
BB ME TANBRAT 2 Tax effect of expenses not deductible
mETE for tax purpose 4,544 1,748
THATBEBEREZ MG E Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 10 522
) LRI AR FE R T IE 5 18 Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised (7) (215)
EERKENBARZ Effect of different tax rates of
TRABMEzZE subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong (1,389) (2,777)
FEREIMBAREESRHRIBEZFE  Effect of income tax at concessionary rate (3,947) (1,499)
BEFERETE Underprovision in prior years 8,831 403
Htb Others (965) (634)
FEMEZH Tax charge for the year 15,482 5,803

ERIEEEER TERTHUM
DIRTHEBAZHEARR

R-F——F AKRERTLEHE—HA
g BAKERMERS (ZERFAERT
BEEAEEMEREER) DIRTEHE
BAALRB D IREZEHZRIE - R=_F—=
F+-A=+t—H ARAEEFRR " §H
EBEAEARENARE T —EARDIKRA
NEIRR - Mt - EEERZBEROBER
FEDIRZHERS  XRNEEPBEHRRA
ERERIERERBEI - At - BE-F
——F+_A=T—HLEFEZRAEEZENK
BRETEY  $EBERBIERDKRLLE
B2 MEXRBAOEZEENRAR
ETHRARESRTHEEAZHEAS -
YR -B-—F+-_A=+—RZEaHK
MARADFHZS
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14. DISCONTINUED OPERATION/DISPOSAL GROUP

CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR DISTRIBUTION TO

OWNERS

In 2012, the Group decided and committed to a plan to distribute
the Group’s properties investment business conducted by
the Property Group, which principally carries out the Group’s
properties investment business in Hong Kong and the PRC, to
its owners and initiated the process to distribute such business.
As at 31 December 2012, the directors of the Company
considered that it was highly probably that such business would
be distributed to the Company’s shareholders within the next
twelve months. As a result, the Property Group was classified
as disposal group held for distribution as at that date and
presented as a discontinued operation in these consolidated
financial statements. Accordingly, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2011
has been restated to present such business as discontinued
operation and the assets and liabilities attributable to Property
Group have been classified as disposal group held for distribution
to owners and are presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012.
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14. BRIEEEER D ERTHUM

DIRFHEBAZHERR &

BEEEFEN_ZT—=F"_A+NLEBA
ZRBR  RIAEENUNARABHBES
BB R P EARIBIZ LT - BB ARFK
REWD KK EKSS.0%E EITIRAZ
RIS DK - MO REMEREER
HBEHNKAMBERPR T —=F_74
“TNEMLETXHETERXH] - AR
AEERS "HERLEBHESEDIK
FARBRR - DHBERR —F—=F=H
TABTER  FIRHNHE34 -

KEERIEGEXHZFREMNAIMMAT

EHERE Turnover

BEELESH Direct operating expenses

H A Other income

REMERATFE Net changes in fair value
FH)FE of investment properties

TBX Administrative expenses

H A Other expenses

BE B AR Finance costs

B B B8 7 Profit before taxation

1A Taxation

F = A Profit for the year

RAFE BERIEKEEXEBFAAEE
4R E B 15 3 1,897,0008 T (—F — —
& B KT7,027,00008 L) C BEREE
&) % 2k17,290,0008 T (=T — — F :
% £40,004,0008 7T) Mgt gt B & B &
148,108,000 L (=Z T — — F : &R
18,636,0005 75) °

14. DISCONTINUED OPERATION/DISPOSAL GROUP

CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR DISTRIBUTION TO

OWNERS - continued

Pursuant to a resolution of the Board on 19 February 2013, it
was proposed that the Group spin off its properties investment
business through the separate listing of the Property Group
on the Stock Exchange by way of introduction, through a
special dividend distribution satisfied by distribution in specie
of approximately 83.0% of the issued share capital of Wing Lee
Property to the Company’s shareholders, the details of which
are set out in the listing document of Wing Lee Property dated
28 February 2013 (the “Listing Document”). The directors of the
Company considered that the Spin-Off Exercise is in substance
distributing the Property Group to the Company’s shareholders.
The Spin-Off Exercise, details of which are set out in note 34,
was subsequently completed on 19 March 2013.

The profit for the year from the discontinued operation is
analysed as follows:

—F-=F —F——F

2012 2011

Pt TEx TAET
NOTES HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
21,577 18,568
(1,308) (3,025)

8 4,896 62
292,134 137,264
(14,065) (9,075)

(11,184) -
9 (2,006) (1,294)
10 290,044 142,500
13 (1,774) (2,974)
288,270 139,526

During the year, the discontinued operation contributed
HK$1,897,000 (2011: contributed HK$7,027,000) in respect of
the Group’s operating activities, contributed HK$17,290,000
(2011: paid HK$40,004,000) in respect of investing activities
and paid HK$8,108,000 (2011: contributed HK$18,636,000) in
respect of financing activities.
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14. BRIEEEER D ERTHUM
DIRTHEBEAZHERR

15.

RZTE——F+-_A=+—"8 BRIEE
¥ THEESENEERSEREENT

BEME
& Ko H At & UL RR
RUTEFERES
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BBEANZEE
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e TR

RITEK

EETARE

HOBER/TEUAEDIRT
BREANCEERRMZAR
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AEERNCERB/D IR ZKE
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OWNERS - continued

are as follows:

Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Rental and other receivables
Fixed deposits

Bank balances and cash

Assets classified as held for distribution to owners
Other payables and rental deposits received
Taxation payable

Bank loans
Deferred tax liabilities

Liabilities associated with assets classified
as held for distribution to owners

15. DIVIDENDS

Dividends recognised as
distribution during the year:

— T —FREBEEFR2.08(1l 2012 interim dividend of 2.0 HK

(ZF——%F: 2,081

cents (2011: 2.0 HK cents) per share

—E——FREKRBEFRA.0EI 2011 final dividend of 4.0 HK

—EFF: 208D

F 3| 2012 ANNUAL REPORT

cents (2010: 2.0 HK cents) per share

T--F

2012
TERT
HK$’000

6,411

12,821

19,232

14. DISCONTINUED OPERATION/DISPOSAL GROUP
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR DISTRIBUTION TO

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the Property
Group under the discontinued operation as at 31 December 2012

FTHT
HK$’ 000

884,154
6,928
772
30,053
31,289

963,196

11,060
455
126,234
4,356

142,105

—E——%F
2011
FH&IT
HK$’ 000

6,908

7,027

13,935



15.

16.

RE—&

RIB—=F"A+TNA EFFE LMK
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MAREE)FEMDIROEAN - AR
D GEE(EER LWt BB AES
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ERREER)EKRE  HAEE - b
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REBECEEBRERILSEER
AR RIS A RE (5 SR E A BRI TH 18 1
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DIVIDENDS - continued

On 19 February 2013, a conditional special interim dividend was
declared by the Board to be satisfied through a distribution in
specie by the Company of approximately 83.0% of the issued
share capital of Wing Lee Property after the capitalisation of the
amounts due from the Property Group to the Retained Group
(being the Group excluding the Property Group), subject to the
Spin-Off Condition (as defined in the Listing Document, that is
the listing sub-committee of the board of the Stock Exchange
granting the listing of, and permission to deal in, the shares
of Wing Lee Property on the Stock Exchange). The listing
approval was obtained on 18 March 2013, and on 19 March
2013, approximately 83.0% of the shares of Wing Lee Property
were distributed to the owners of the Company pursuant to the
Distribution (as defined in note 34) and the shares of Wing Lee
Property were listed on the Stock Exchange.

The Board does not recommend a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2012 (2011: final dividend of 4.0 HK cents
per share).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

—E-CF —F——F
2012 2011
FHE T FH&T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
ZF| Earnings
AEERERERR 2B A Earnings (profit for the year attributable
(RAFIRERE ARG to owners of the Company) for the
FE®F) purpose of basic earnings per share 312,808 167,916
gk 4= Number of shares
—_E=2—= —E——%F
2012 2011

sw G R E A AR T e
FHEBREAR

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic
earnings per share

320,525,879 342,056,751
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16. BRER —&
REBEECEER
ARAPRIERE AR R EE S RG>
SREABRFITIBEUTERTE -

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE - continued

From continuing operation

The calculation of the basic earnings per share from continuing
operation attributable to the owners of the Company is based on
the following data:

—ET-CF —T——fF
2012 2011
FExT FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
AARMRERRE ATERFEEEF  Profit for the year attributable to
the owners of the Company 312,808 167,916
RARIRERFB AEIL Profit for the year from the discontinued
REDKRIMEEER 2FEHEM  operation attributable to the owners
of the Company (288,270) (139,526)
HERBELEEB Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings
FRERAEF 2 ZF) per share from the continuing operation 24,538 28,390

AR FAESRERRHPAAER
ﬁ o

RECHKIELEFEK

ERIEREER CBRELABT AEE R
89.93 M (=ZZF — —F : FR40.79%8
W)  HREBEREERELEER 2T
[ %% #1288,270,0008 T (=& — — % :
139&6mﬂ%x>&urﬁfu+-i%%
REFZ D ETE

MRFEALEEEEERD > Bt - WEE
SR EERA -
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The denominator used are the same as those above for basic
earnings per share.

From discontinued operation

Basic earnings per share for discontinued operation is 89.93
HK cents per share (2011: 40.79 HK cents per share) based
on the profit for the year from discontinued operation of
HK$288,270,000 (2011: HK$139,526,000) and the denominator
set out above for basic earnings per share.

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there were no
potential dilutive shares in issue for both years.
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17. BREWE 17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
—F-=F —F——F
2012 2011
FHExT FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
NEE FAIR VALUE
Rn—A—H At 1 January 609,679 490,524
b 5, 58 2 Currency realignment 414 1,556
NE Additions 27,351 80,992
& Disposals (8,400) (101,000)
ENOBEAFBEUESIK Reclassified as held for distribution
TR A (H7E14) to owners (note 14) (884,154) =
NF{EE M Increase in fair value 292,601 137,607
R+—-_A=+—H At 31 December 37,491 609,679
FAEBEKEME L The carrying value of the Group’s
BREEMR - investment properties
shown above situated on
BBz T Land in Hong Kong
—KRHMAY - long lease 3,050 535,660
—H AR A — medium-term lease - 32,500
2z i Land in the PRC
—RHHEL - long lease 700 654
— R EBRFR &Y — medium-term lease 33,741 40,865

37,491 609,679
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17. REWME-E

AEBR-_ZE—Z—FR_FT——F+=A8
Tt HZEREYWEAFEIZREREERL
ERAE BN BEYEGEMKFITER
BBERAR ([XMTHRZBETTZHEE
MEH - RUREEZYENS (TEIEE
FOoBABEUHIERTHEEAZKREYD
¥) HENMAEERLBAL2EASFY
AILEMEBERSmED ([BEELEE]) -
MNRATEZYE(TBREET»BEAZEN
HAYORTHEBAZEEYWE) @ - BEE
AEZELES:  BEUHRIRZTHBERA
B AlERTEEEXAED RIFHEZ Y%
Z2EE o RERZ L E 2 EEY - T E
BEXNNEAEEFZATE - HEREM
@ EAEAACUET - AR - AR R IheE
ZEEMEEFTEERA °

R_B-——F+_A=+—REHDERH
EDIRTRERBEAZAESEREYE 2 DF
B TR AMITRZ BT ZAEREERS
e EEDAERLBOERH -

PIARBEEROFEARBEEREER
BERGZASEYEERERQFER
AFTE UDBERABRRREME -
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2012 and 2011 have been arrived at on the basis of
a valuation carried out on those dates by RHL Appraisal Limited
(“RHL”), an independent firm of professional property valuers
not related to the Group. For properties situated in Hong Kong
(other than those investment properties reclassified as held for
distribution to owners) the valuation was arrived at by using direct
comparison method by making reference to the comparable
market transactions as available (the “Direct Comparison
Method”). For those properties located in the PRC (other than
those investment properties reclassified as held for distribution
to owners) the Direct Comparison Method is also used, and
where comparable market prices are not available, depreciated
replacement cost approach is used in assessing the land portion
of the properties and buildings structures standing on the
land respectively. The depreciated replacement cost approach
measures the fair value of a building by estimating its new
replacement costs, based on the cost of constructing a similar
building in similar locations, with deductions made to allow for
age, condition and functional obsolescence.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties classified
as held for distribution to owners at 31 December 2012 has
been arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out on that
date by RHL. The valuation was arrived at by using the Direct
Comparison Method.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purpose are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.
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18. ¥ - BMENRKXE 18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
RELH BENF BRHE
kEF HBOERE %8 RE R @it
Leasehold Furniture, Moulds,
land and fixturesand  Leasehold Motor plant and
buildings  equipment improvements vehicles  machinery Total

TEx TiEx TiEx TiEx TiEx TR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

A COST
R-E——%-f-H At 1 January 2011 216,408 1,951 9,003 6,902 105,561 339,825
AR Currency realignment 9,587 = 255 127 4,632 14,601
AE Additions 2,648 = = 3,241 13,687 19,576
e Disposals = = = (882) (766) (1,648)
RZB——F+-A=+—-H At 31 December 2011 228,643 1,951 9,258 9,388 123,114 372,354
BR A Currency realignment 2,563 = 68 45 1,312 3,988
AE Additions 1,182 = = 696 24,289 26,167
ENNEABENES R Reclassified as held for

THA A (F14) distribution to owners

(note 14) (20,690) = = (950) = (21,640)

HE Disposals (2,897) - - (432) (283) (3,612)
R-Z-—&+-A=1-8 At 31 December 2012 208,801 1,951 9,326 8,747 148,432 377,257
& DEPRECIATION
R-Z——%—-f—H At 1 January 2011 42910 1,518 9,003 6,359 70,465 130,255
B 5 % Currency realignment 1,776 - 255 59 2,903 4,993
FREE Provided for the year 11,758 217 = 848 13,695 26,518
R ERER Elimination on disposal = = = (882) (766) (1,648)
W_E——F+-A=1—H At 31 December 2011 56,444 1,735 9,258 6,384 86,297 160,118
AR Currency realignment 535 - 68 17 852 1,472
FERE Provided for the year 12,044 216 = 1,012 17,291 30,563
BENAEABENES R Reclassified as held for

THE A (F3E14) distribution to owners

(note 14) (14,332) = = (380) = (14,712)

REER R Elimination on disposal (970) - - (432) (151) (1,553)
W-B——#+-fA=+—-H At 31 December 2012 53,721 1,951 9,326 6,601 104,289 175,888
EmE CARRYING VALUES
RZE-—#+-A=+-H At 31 December 2012 155,080 = = 2146 44,143 201,369
W-E——F+-A=+—H At 31 December 2011 172,199 216 = 3,004 36,817 212,236
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18. ¥k - MERHRE &
¥ - BERRHEEE DAERERT
B F REHRITE

EEAEN LTI R4 B s504 -

MigF AR & At

ERBEMNEF 204

PANZRME 20%

HEMERE T K2 m A 8
H5E - B E

RE 20%

BE BENRKEE  20%

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - continued

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight line basis at the following rates per

annum:

Land and buildings in Hong Kong Over the terms of the

Buildings in the PRC

leases or 50 years,
whichever is shorter
20 years

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%

Leasehold improvements

Motor vehicles
Moulds, plant and machinery

AEELHREFZEREmME The carrying value of the Group’s land
BIE and buildings comprises:

Fris L REF Land and buildings held under
—EEAEREBERBBLNRE — medium-term leases in Hong Kong
—GEHBEREFBHENEE — medium-term leases in the PRC

90 £ # 2012 ANNUAL REPORT

Over the remaining
unexpired terms of the
leases or 5 years,
whichever is shorter

20%

20%
—E——fF —E——F
2012 2011
TBT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T AN/A 9,889
155,080 162,310

155,080 172,199
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19. EEERE 19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS
—E-—F —EF——F
2012 2011
FHExT FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
AEEZEMEERERRE The Group’s prepaid lease payments
FHAOTRAPE comprise leasehold land in the PRC
HE LT under medium-term lease 14,213 14,387
BEWmMET - ATWOT Analysed for reporting purposes as:
mENE E (FFAHAM Current asset (included in other
FEW R IE) receivables) 354 350
ERBEE Non-current asset 13,859 14,037
14,213 14,387
20. 78 20. INVENTORIES
—E——F —T——F
2012 2011
FET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
R Raw materials 25,499 31,650
+ A Work in progress 6,571 7,697
B Finished goods 7,286 10,129
39,356 49,476

F 8| 2012 ANNUAL REPORT
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21. EG R EMEWERMK 21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
—F-=F —F——F
2012 2011
FiET FiHT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
B 5 BRI Trade receivables 50,281 66,198
E b e W FR TR Other receivables 6,850 12,893

AEFEHEEFTBUFEEFRNETRS - %
ZE % AT HE30A F00H A X
- WETHRERERIZER  ENZMRA
EZE1208 - RBEHR - RAEEUEER
HOrERKSERAEREES) AEEZES
EUBRR Z BRI ATIT ¢

AR R Age

0Z90H 0 - 90 days
91%&180H 91 - 180 days
HBiE180H Over 180 days

F 3| 2012 ANNUAL REPORT

57,131 79,091

Payment terms with customers are mainly on credit. Invoices are
normally due for payment within 30 to 90 days after issuance,
except for certain well-established customers, where the terms
are extended to 120 days. The following is an aged analysis
of trade receivables presented based on the invoice date (also
approximates to revenue recognition date) at the end of the
reporting period:

—E—-C—F —EF——%
2012 2011
FET FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
49,841 61,261
440 4,067

- 870

50,281 66,198
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ESRHEMEWERR &
AEEESREKEREHBIERTDLAES
7,306,000/ 7T (=& ——4F : 19,388,000/%
JC) ZFEWERIE - ZERBERBREHRE B
B ASEEIW AR ELREBERE B
BEVEREEEREBAZEETRE
ELFES)  c REBUWESEZSEHB 2T
ARG - ZFRIERTE 2 F198RER A39H
—E——F 1 94RH) -

EBMETTREZE S EVRAKE

BER Overdue by:
1 - 30 days
31 - 90 days
Over 90 days

1-30H
31 - 90H
H3#®0H

@t Total

I EpL B E 5 R UORFEEEMF S
AREE R\ MEA K L2 FA BUERRIEERR
B FRARBELREZSTRUREBS
JEA A E—fg R E - R EERN
AR EZEZREIRR - BN REEER
) EAE B -

REBE-T——F+-_A=1T—HIFE "
EREMERFEEE S EKIRE 2 T ERE
B IWRERE=ZZRF A 82,031,000
TL(ZZE——F : ) 2B T AERRENL
MEBZER EAZERFEWERE -

NZEBE——FE+-A=+—0 UEEEE
BIZMEEEUIINZIINEEEZE S RE
th JiE U5 BR 7R 4 443,787,000/ 7 (= F ——
F : 54,839,000/ 7T)  ELAEITEE °

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - continued

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$7,306,000 (2011:
HK$19,388,000) which are past due at the end of the reporting
period for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss as there is no adverse change in the credit standing of the
debtors from the date at which credit was initially granted. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances at the
end of the reporting period. The average age of these receivables
is 39 days (2011: 94 days).

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

—E——F —T——F
2012 2011
FHT FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
6,735 14,264

487 3,909

84 1,215

7,306 19,388

No interest is charged on overdue trade receivables, it is the
Group’s policy to provide fully for all receivables over eight
months because historical experience is such that receivables
past due beyond eight months are generally not recoverable. No
allowances were made during both years as no trade receivables
were aged over eight months.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the management
has individually assessed the recoverability of its trade debt and
determined that an amount of HK$2,031,000 (2011: nil) from
three customers were individually impaired and written-off as bad
debts as these customers were put under liquidation.

At 31 December 2012, trade and other receivables denominated
in currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities amounted to approximately HK$43,787,000 (2011:
HK$54,839,000) which is denominated in United States dollars.
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22. BITHEERRE EHER
RITHETFIRTFO.001IER0LE (T ——
F:0001EE05F) 2TEMEFE - T
HEREEF149EB(ZT——F :2E) 2
BEAERt S BEREREAEZMMAKIAT -

RITERIACBREUNEREE AR ZIEE
BE NG EEZ TR :

22. BANK BALANCES AND CASH/FIXED DEPOSITS
Bank balances carry interest at market rates which ranges from
0.001% to 0.5% (2011: 0.001% to 0.5%) per annum. The fixed
deposits carry fixed interest rate of 1.49% (2011: 2%) per annum
with an original maturity of three months or less.

Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts
denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies of
the relevant group entities:

—E-—-F —E——%F

2012 2011

FExT THET

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

ETT United States dollars 24,659 23,656
AR Renminbi

23. E 5 R H MY AR X

529 100

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

—E——F —E——fF

2012 2011

TH®xT FHET

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

H 5 EMERR Trade payables 5,222 13,559
WEmEE BERZRBEZ Payable for acquisition of property,

P& ROE plant and equipment 7,824 9,825
st &R Accrued expenses 21,821 15,898
H A & 1~ 7218 Other tax payables 14,895 22,487
o {th JE 5 3K IB Other payables 5,462 1,785

REERR  NEEABRZEEHREECE

55,224 63,554

The following is an aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables

SEMERZERDITOT ¢ presented based on the invoice date as at the end of the
reporting period:
—E-_F —E——%F
2012 2011
FHExT FH&T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
AR B2 Age
0%Z90H 0 - 90 days 5,222 12,447
912180H 91— 180 days - 1,112

BEEmZFHEEHRWOA -

F 3| 2012 ANNUAL REPORT

5,222 13,559

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days.
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HFBEDNRERBEMBERBRERAE

W-_ZT——%+ - =+ —H
132,410,000 Tt (ZE —ZF : T
TL) Z RITE R 7%»(2!&%@2@%@@7%
285,200,000/ 7L 2 18 B W) VBRI - RN =
T——F+-_fA=+—8 ROTERETEFR
EBRITREFRENOIEE25EE (=
T——F Q7EE275E) - HE-_E—=
F+-_A=+—HILFE " *"'@Jfﬁﬁ%
ZEBRENTHF1A7EE2.90E (=
——%F : 0.81EE3.04F) °

HE-_ZT——F+=-_A=+—HLEFE"
12623400075752?& TEREENHEAR

DEAEFBEUELSIRTHEBEACEERH
ZEE(E&W?M%@) M ERITE R LA
15 3 £ £= 8] BF 1 {8 4 466,800,0007%8 7T 2 %
BT 2 IRIBERER - WIREBET
RIZEHF B I0.70E E2.75B 2 FF| Rt B o
HE_ZT——HF+-_A=1+—HItEE &%

FRPIRTERZBERFRNTEF0.98E
E31E -

24. SRITER 24. BANK LOANS
—F—=F —F——F
2012 2011
FERT FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
AEEZIRITENR The bank loans are repayable*:
—FRA Within one year 30,000 45,560
A —FETBBEME More than one year, but not
exceeding two years - 13,162
HBBAMFENBBASF More than two years but not
more than five years - 40,974
BiEAF More than five years - 45,129
30,000 144,825
BARNREHRBT —FA Carrying amounts of bank loans that are
BE HAEEEREX not repayable within one year from
AEBGERZBITER the end of the reporting period but
EEEGIARBAER) contain a repayment on demand clause
(shown under current liabilities) - 17,585
30,000 162,410
W BAR—FANEBECZESE Less: Amounts due within one year
Gl AERBERE) shown under current liabilities (30,000) (63,145)
TAEFERBEEZSRE Amounts shown under non-current liabilities = 99,265

The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements.

At 31 December 2011, bank loans of HK$132,410,000 (2012:
nil) were secured by mortgages over the Group’s investment
properties with carrying amount of HK$285,200,000. At 31
December 2012, bank loans carried interest at HIBOR plus 0.9%
to 2.5% (2011: 0.7% to 2.75%) per annum. During the year
ended 31 December 2012, the effective interest rates of variable
rate bank loans range from 1.17% to 2.90% (2011: 0.81% to
3.04%) per annum.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, bank loans of
HK$126,234,000 were reclassified to liabilities associated with
assets classified as held for distribution to owners (as disclosed
in note 14). All of these bank loans were secured by mortgages
over the Property Group’s investment properties with carrying
amount of HK$466,800,000 and carry interest at HIBOR plus
0.70% to 2.75% per annum. During the year ended 31 December
2012, the effective interest rates of these variable rate bank loans
range from 0.98% to 3.11% per annum.
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25 BB IBARE
AT ARREERBERE BHMRRZE
ZREHAAE (EE) RELBER

RZE——F%—H—H At 1 January 2011
B AR Currency realignment
HBRAEEER Charge to profit or
(H13E13) loss for the year
(note 13)

RZE——F+=-F=+—H At31 December 2011

BE AR B Currency realignment
g GIAB)AEE (Credit) charge to
B (ME13) profit or loss for
the year (note 13)
BN ERTAE N Reclassified as held
DIETHEE A (FH5E14) for distribution

to owners (note 14)
RZZE——F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2012

R_T——F+_A=+—H ' A&£EH
i® 7R B B 2 B TE 5 18 49415,0008 7L (=&
— —4F : #9405,0005% JT) A £t 1K £ K 2%
F o BT BT 0] TR 2 R 2% I SRR &
B ZBEERMERELCHEEAE - M
ABAZHREBEEEESER - —A2FE
2 BB 49375,0008 L (ZF ——F + 4
405,000/ 70) ° E M E5 18 A] MR Hi 4 82 -
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25. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior

reporting periods:

IERIE REME
e NTFEEH REFE Fobey
Fair value
Accelerated changes of
tax investment Tax
depreciation properties losses Total
FHET FET TET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
1,404 14,606 - 16,010
- 767 - 767
567 678 - 1,245
1,971 16,051 - 18,022
- 201 - 201
(17) 252 (11) 224
(1,840) (2,527) 1 (4,356)
114 13,977 - 14,091

At 31 December 2012, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$415,000 (2011: approximately HK$405,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of such tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised
tax losses are losses of approximately HK$375,000 (2011:
approximately HK$405,000) that will expire in 2015. Other losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.
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LN

FRMEE0.0E T2 BB

EEBRA -
R-B——%F—A—H"
—F——%t-A=+—-H

Authorised:
At 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011
and 31 December 2012

26. SHARE CAPITAL

iz 0 & B ok
Number

of shares Amount

FAT

HK$’ 000

Ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each

kRZFE——f+=-A=+—H 400,000,000 200,000
EETRBERAE Issued and fully paid:
R-_E——%F—HA—H At 1 January 2011 353,383,879 176,692
FEE RS Share repurchased and cancelled (32,858,000) (16,429)
RZTE——F+=—_A=+—HBK At 31 December 2011 and
—E——#+-A=+—H 31 December 2012 160,263

BB
BRER-_ZZ=F_HA - HBETZ2EAQAR
REAAS LBB BBRER  ARAM
BERRA—ER_T—=F—A=+—80#
JEw 2 R st & ([5H3) -

ARABRILA B S EHAEREERGKHIEL
BRIz ABR2EERHEBI L ER - RiIF
iE ARFERANRAERS2EE (B85
ARBPR - ARBAHEEAMBLRRIZE
BEZLEN2REEIEERELE/NE
B R AR 2 (R E R - 7K ASKEER)
BB ROE -

BRYIARRIES - TBTHRABREERE
R EZEMBHEA L ZEREBEFAAR
BN IEMATESBHE o N BT ARRE
ERFREMBLIERTESHIREEF 24
B AT 2 EMEARE  RNEEE LB
(B#EZB) LER—FHERNEBETE
EEHEE RO ZERE(BEBEEITE
R MARITE CBRE) MEETRET
BT oROBEBAERAGNE HE T
B 201% : K(i) BESIREE BRG
Z W EsE 2 4B 1E5,000,0007% T
BIZEBEIRR RN R R EHLE -

320,525,879

27. SHARE OPTIONS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in the Company’s
special general meeting held on 1 February 2003, the Company
approved and adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
which will expire on 31 January 2013.

The purpose of the Scheme is to recognise and motivate the
participants and to provide incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the operations of
the Group. Under the Scheme, the directors of the Company
may grant options to any eligible participants, including
the Company’s shareholders, all directors and any full-time
employees of the Company or any subsidiaries and any suppliers,
consultants or advisors who will provide or have provided
services to the Group.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval by the independent non-executive directors
of the Company. In addition, any share options granted to
a substantial shareholder or any independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their associates, which
would result in the shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all share options already granted and to be granted
(including share options exercised, cancelled and outstanding)
to such person in any one year up to and including the date of
such grant (i) representing in aggregate value over 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue on that date; and (i) having an
aggregate value, based on the closing price of the shares on
the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5 million, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.
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27.

28.

Bre-E
BRRANESS2RET 2 MENTE
Z B R H REE A R RIE10F A
JER IR B R - AN QB R 45 E R AR
AIITRERZARA 2 RAME - R2RHER
AR EE AR 28H EA - MEMR
ERNZFHBERVET - BRERND 2RHE
BERGERAT=EHRz2&8ZE : ()ROHK
B BB W E - (i)l BERE B #AT
RERZEZFHRHE : Ri)kHEE -
HERBEAE A TROBRERR ZBRMNEA
RETBEBARARNIL AT EE BB BT
Bfn 210% © AT - ABBITEERITRZ
BREMAETZRNDEBERS T EEER
RETR D ETRN Z10% ° RIER—F
HA R TERAER2REBREAR 2R
NEERZTREBARRTEDEITRN
Z1% - R BHRERZBH > NRABALER
IR RT B3 AE (A B RO

REMNZH

ERHBEA

RBEHR - AEE D EAEARFELE
EBOEZREMETLEH  BRERK
ZLOREHRENR(ZE——F : REHE
RERBRIERERT) S TR

—FR
F_FEELF(BREEMF)
BB R F

I EMERCARERRZ /N\F  FHHE
HR=%F-

F$ 2012 ANNUAL REPORT

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive
Over five years

27. SHARE OPTIONS - continued

The exercisable period of the options granted are determined
by the Board at its absolute discretion. The share options will
expire no later than ten years from the date of grant. At the
time of grant of the share options, the Company may specify a
minimum period for which an option must be held before it can
be exercised. The acceptance date should not be later than 28
days after the date of offer. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is
payable on acceptance of the grant of options. The subscription
price of the option shares is not less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average
closing prices of the shares on the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
shares. The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme may not exceed
in nominal amount of 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company at the date of approval of the Scheme. However, the
total maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding share options must not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital from time to time. The number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted to each eligible
participants in any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of,
the shares of the Company in issue from time to time. No share
options had been granted under the Scheme as at the date of
these financial statements.

. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

As lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments
in respect of investment properties rented from continuing
operation (2011: continuing and discontinued operations) which
fall due as follows:

—E-——F —E——F
2012 2011
TExT TATT

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
1,855 19,889
7,199 17,631
4,025 5,753
13,079 43,273

The properties held have committed tenants for periods of up to
8 years with average lease term of 3 years.



28.

29.

30.

HEMEOZH-&

ERAMEA

RBERR - AEBARRBHELEERD
ZTAHEEERN (T ——F  HEL
ERORUEREXRH) MR ECHEYNR

A BB R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS -
continued
As lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group was committed to
make the following future minimum lease payments in respect of
rented premises rented under non-cancellable operating leases

VEHIATRKEDFIENT - BEZIBEAER from continuing operation (2011: continuing and discontinued
T3 EABR A operations) which fall due as follows:

- —EF——F

2012 2011

FERT FHET

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

—F R Within one year 58 36

F_FEERF(BIEEREMTF) Insecond to fifth year inclusive 60 =

118 36

B &R > M EE - FHEBLAM
EF o

Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for an average term
of two years.

B AR IE 29. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
—E-C—F —T——F
2012 2011
FHET FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BUHE T3 FIEBEETA Capital expenditure contracted for but
BREEGZEVBRERESE not provided in the consolidated financial
ZEARRE statements in respect of the acquisition of:
—W% - BEREE — property, plant and equipment = 6,410
—REYE — investment properties = 23,058
- 29,468
RKFEFR S 30. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

AEESBEEMEAEREERERFER
BetE ((aBEeatE))  wES+EZ
BEEAKEESHFFE UHAXFEAR
B o IRIFREEFTERA - BEREEHE
BRBFTIEE 2 L R AR EIHR - AEH
Mgt 8 E—BETIZ BT EIRE
EHERK - BB EIMELE 2 HHREER
FermBRERASEHE - AKERZE
RAIFIEE 2L R BRAESHN 2 HK -

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in funds under the control of trustee. Under the rules
of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at rates specified
in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect of
MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme. The retirement benefits scheme contributions arising
from the MPF scheme charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income represent contributions payable to the
funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the scheme.

F# 2012 ANNUAL REPORT

99



R BB R R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. RINEFGFHEI - & 30.

ARAHENBARZIEE2EATEBA
BEZEREERREFNFTE - NRAFFE
MEBRARARKRSEHEE T AL RZRK
R - AEER A BRKENG 8 21
—BETRBRA SR EFHRHR -

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES - continued

The employees of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are members
of state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
PRC government. The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their basic payroll to
the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits
scheme is to make the required contributions under the scheme.

31. R A B AR R &R 31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY
—E-CF —E—F
2012 2011
FET FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
BE Assets
HEBARIEE Investments in subsidiaries 63,464 63,434
B 508 Prepayments 145 3,127
I ENEIEA Amounts due from subsidiaries 514,069 328,422
RITEEHR MRS Bank balances and cash 339 1,625
578,017 396,608
am| Liabilities
EETE R Accruals 399 250
AR B Dividend payables 7 5
FEAST IR Taxation payables 292 14
R EENGIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 21,603 =
22,301 269
555,716 396,339
A& A K 5% 1 Capital and reserves
&N Share capital 160,263 160,263
M Reserves 395,453 236,076
555,716 396,339
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32.

ADRMBRRE
HEZD

RZE——%F—F—H
FEEF
BOREERD

R-Z——%+-f=1+—H
FEEF
BBRE
R-E——#+-A=1+—H

TEMB LA

COMPANY - continued
Movement in reserves
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. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

EXER
R 47 6 B Bk 4 BAB& BER7 @t
Capital
Share  redemption  Contributed Retained
premium reserve surplus profits Total
THET THET THT TET THET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
At 1 January 2011 78,815 14,361 24,930 18,624 136,730
Profit for the year - - - 125,346 125,346
Share repurchased
and cancelled - 16,429 - (28,494) (12,065)
Dividend paid - - - (13,935) (13,935)
At 31 December 2011 78,815 30,790 24,930 101,541 236,076
Profit for the year - - - 178,609 178,609
Dividend paid - - - (19,232) (19,232)
At 31 December 2012 78,815 30,790 24,930 260,918 395,453

R_B——FR-_B——F+_A=+—
H ARABXENBAR(REFHA/RRF

32. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of which are
indirectly wholly-owned by the Company, at 31 December 2012

ME2EER) ZFHBET :

MEBARERE

Name of subsidiary
=EXEARRAA

Morning Star Industrial
Company Limited

ER(BE)EFTARRAA
(ff5Ta)

ERET)EFARRAR
(note a)

EREX(CIR)BRAA
(P #EDb)
EREFOTR)BRAR
(note b)

ExBRARR
Extra Rich Development Limited

RAZERERAA

Fast Silver Development Limited

and 2011 are as follows:

MY R, BRITREES

B R

Place of

incorporation/
establishment/

T EAREE
Nominal value of
issued and fully
paid share/

operation registered capital
HE 5,000,000/ 7T
Hong Kong HK$5,000,000
2] 30,000,000/ 7T
PRC HK$30,000,000
i 200,000,000/ 7T
PRC HK$200,000,000
& 10,0005 7T
Hong Kong HK$10,000
BB 10,000/ 7T
Hong Kong HK$10,000

Principal activities

EEEFHE
N B 2R B 1

Trading in electronic jacks and
connectors

BUENEEETEE
MBI

Manufacture of and trading in
electronic jacks and connectors

NEE SRR
Manufacture of and trading in
electronic jacks and connectors

MERE

Property investment

MERE

Property investment
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2. FEMBELAT &

B &L -

(8 ER(BE)ETFTERARAEREKILZ
INEBELE  CEHE_TTNF—AZ
AfEsEt - BB+ =4 -

() EREX(CTR)BERABREFRBEMILZIN
EBEECE KEHE-_TTMENAA+TR
Bt RETF -

RIBFHFEARKMBINE B FEF 200K - F
BZHBEAREERAFERLLHR - AQ
BlcEEMAFERRIEY - YR ATENB
NEREAERERAER S EHRNAE -

EREJNZARTMBARDIARRZES
ERRNIBFEXEREELEARE - AR
AZEZERRIEEMBMBARFIETEBRN
E °

EMBARMERTR_ZE——_F+=A
T HMAGFEEZTMAESLES  FRE
MR MNEZETIMNERES -
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32. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Notes:

(a) EE (BF) EFEMRAF is a wholly foreign investment enterprise
established in the PRC for a term of 12 years commencing 2
January 2004.

by EREE (AJR) BRAF is a wholly foreign investment enterprise
established in the PRC for a term of 10 years commencing 16
August 2004.

Pursuant to Article 20 of the Foreign-Owned Enterprise Law of
the PRC (F#EARIELMBEINE®FEE), subsidiaries in the PRC
are entitled to apply for extension of the operation period. The
directors of the Company intend to apply for such extension and
consider that the subsidiaries in the PRC are able to renew the
operating period at a minimal cost.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected
the results or assets or liabilities of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at 31
December 2012 or at any time during the year.
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group had the following related party transactions/balances:

(@)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
sold an investment property to a related company which
is owned by certain directors of the Company at a cash
consideration of HK$850,000. The consideration was
determined based on a valuation carried out by RHL with
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties in similar location.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
entered into a lease agreement to let a property at prevailing
market rent to Mr. Lui Siu Fung, a director of Wing Lee
Property and a rental income of HK$78,000 has been
received during the year. At 31 December 2012, the Group
has rental deposit of HK$26,000 received from Mr. Lui Siu
Fung and the amount is included in rental deposit received
as set out in note 14.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
entered into a lease agreement to let a property at prevailing
market rent to Ms. Wong Lai Lee, the daughter of Ms. Wong
Siu Wah who is the director of the Company and a rental
income of HK$26,000 has been received during the year.
The lease was terminated on 31 August 2012, and the
property was disposed of in November 2012.

Key management personnel compensation represents the
amounts paid to the directors of the Company and the
five highest paid individuals as set out in notes 11 and 12,
respectively.
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34. FEHEBEE
ATAR-Z——F+-A=+—BH%REE
ZHEH

(@)

R-ZF-—=F_AthH EFEFK
MHRMF RS RIP EIBE - SRR FR
P& W tth E 5 [ 7 SRIA B 5T B AR AL IKA
HE#B83.0% 2 B EITRAMREEE
(IBHESENIINAEE) EED
DRSNS - AT D i G
BEREMXM AMIAETELHE
etk M ERMDRE R L™
REE)ERER  TAFEE(DIR]) -

R-ZE—=FE-A=+/\8 - xFuE
oI E S B R B P E R £ TR
B BT e

RZZT—=F=F+NB  E5FKAE
1 B P AR A E R (D 7
BIXERLEMREE - RIEEAL
BIT(ERER LX) @ ok FIHE S
JEHRB £ E 2 5784 326,183,000
BT E AR - WA AQE) AL K& 3ETT
383,175,748 K FI b EE L @AX + WA
FIABRE - R-_ZE—=H#=A1+Ah
B - KA E 483.0% M 1) 2 RIE D IR
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ARIEBEZNEESIFHEAE®E 20
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&
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34. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
The following events took place subsequent to 31 December
2012:

(@)

On 19 February 2013, a conditional special interim dividend
was declared by the Board, to be satisfied through a
distribution in specie by the Company of approximately
83.0% of the issued share capital of Wing Lee Property
after the capitalisation of the amounts due from the Property
Group to the Retained Group (being the Group excluding
the Property Group), subject to the Spin-off Condition (as
defined in the Listing Document, that is the listing sub-
committee of the board of the Stock Exchange granting the
listing of, and permission to deal in, the shares of Wing Lee
Property on the Stock Exchange) (the “Distribution”).

On 28 February 2013, in respect to the Spin-Off Exercise
of the Property Group on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, Wing Lee Property issued the Listing Document.

On 18 March 2013, the Stock Exchange granted the
listing of, and permission to deal in, the shares of Wing
Lee Property on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
upon which the spin-off became unconditional. Pursuant
to the Capitalisation Issue (as defined in the Listing
Document), Wing Lee Property capitalised the amounts
due to the Retained Group in the aggregate amount of
HK$326,183,000 and allotted and issued 383,175,748
ordinary shares of Wing Lee Property, credited as fully paid,
to the Company. On 19 March 2013, approximately 83.0%
of the shares of Wing Lee Property were distributed to the
owners of the Company pursuant to the Distribution and
the shares of Wing Lee Property were listed on the Stock
Exchange. At the date of these financial statements, the
directors of the Company are still in process of quantifying
the financial impact of the Spin-Off Exercise to the Group.
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RESULTS

Continuing operation
Turnover

(Loss) profit before taxation
Taxation credit (charge)

(Loss) profit for the year from
continuing operation

Profit for the year from
discontinued operation

(Loss) profit for the year

(Loss) profit for the year
attributable to owners of
the Company
- from continuing operation

ITED

- )

B HE
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BET-A=1t-HL%FE

Year ended 31 December

- from discontinued operation =

Loss for the year from continuing

operation attributable to
non-controlling interests

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets
Total liabilities

Net assets
Attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Note:

SEZEBRAFEBE S EREILEEXET -
BEERR AEEFHEEEHE_TT)N\F
—EENFR-ZE-—ZEF+-_A=+—RHILEF
B2 EEEHBHEINL T EAAT ©

ZZENF ZTENE ZT-TF T ZB-Zf
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
TET TEX THET TET TEX
HK$’ 000 HK$’' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

(FE) (FI5E) (F5E) (=5)

(Note) (Note) (Note) (Restated)
421,334 331,563 424,657 361,318 368,772
(73,369) 59,841 85,455 33,455 39,346
2,190 (2,787) (6,994) (5,803) (15,482)
(711,179) 57,054 78,461 27,652 23,864
- - - 139,526 288,270
(71,179) 57,054 78,461 167,178 312,134
(70,824) 58,079 79,502 28,390 24,538
- - 139,526 288,270
(70,824) 58,079 79,502 167,916 312,808
(355) (1,025) (1,041) (738) (674)
(71,179 57,054 78,461 167,178 312,134

R+=—A=t+-H
As at 31 December

—ZENFE —EENF —E-TFf —ET-——F ZEB--f
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
THAT TET THT THET TET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
739,178 702,660 923,289 1,088,367 1,380,260
(194,259) (100,687) (236,417) (259,820) (256,583)
544,919 601,973 686,872 828,547 1,123,677
542,714 600,793 686,913 829,113 1,124,865
2,205 1,180 (41) (566) (1,188)
544,919 601,973 686,872 828,647 1,123,677

Included results of the Property Group whereby its operation was
classified as discontinued operation in current year as set out in note
14. The Directors considered that it is impractical for the Group to
re-present the result of the Property Group for the years ended 31
December 2008, 2009 and 2010.
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT

RIZE——F+-A=+—8 KEBFEAER
B2ETEMEFBOT ¢

Details of the Group’s major investment properties at 31
December 2012 are as follows:

L) ESibil
Property address

BEEPREHEFIMFHRREERNE
N C2A K C2B R C2D5E 7 4

Shop Nos. C2A and C2B and C2D
on Ground Floor,

China Insurance Group Building,

No. 141 Des Voeux Road, Central,
Hong Kong

BERETRLE2RBEANEN TR 758 &M
Shop No. 7 on Ground Floor,

Rialto Building, No. 2 Landale Street,
Wanchai,

Hong Kong

AR IREEETCRM T REE
Ground Floor and Cockloft,

No. 61 Wellington Street, Central,
Hong Kong

BB IEF206F 2085 FE L EH T &
—18C=E (B#ETA)

Ground Floor and Flat C

on 1st Floor, including Flat Roof,

Wah Fung Building,

Nos. 296 — 298 Lockhart Road,

Wanchai,

Hong Kong

BT 5T B3605R BB AE FBE
(b T~ B#EAL)

Flat B on G/F (Shop B on G/F)

Hung Fook Mansion,

No. 360 Lockhart Road, Wanchai,

Hong Kong

BB BT ERANERSS-905 B EAE
A - BRCHIR —1A - BRCE
Shops A, B, C on G/F and Flats A, B, C
on 1/F, Kam Tak Mansion,

Nos. 88-90 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong
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BEFAR
Existing use

[GES

Commercial

[SES

Commercial

[GES

Commercial

[GES

Commercial

[CE

Commercial

[GE

Commercial

R

Lease term

=3k

Long lease

REITEL
Long lease

REIFEL
Long lease

FEHMEL

Long lease

RHIHEG

Long lease

RHIHEQ

Long lease
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LES R
Property address

BB HELTRE255335 - BEE1E35
DI R EABEM TEFA & EIBERL
Shop E on Ground Floor and Mezzanine Floor,

Cheong Hong Mansion,
Nos. 25-33 Johnston Road,
Nos. 1-3 Thomas Road,

No. 2 Fenwick Street, Wanchai,

Hong Kong

BEREFERE B35
NEMENEL T REE
Ground & Mezzanine Floor,
Mandarin Commercial House,
No. 38 Morrison Hill Road,
Wanchai,

Hong Kong

BEBF I E68-TOMEEMERNEHM TR —E
G/F & 1/F, Wayson Commercial House,
Nos. 68 — 70 Lockhard Road, Wanchai,

Hong Kong

B A LB H656%

No. 656 Shanghai Street, Mongkok,

Hong Kong

BB LIVESHEAEIF T E31E
G/F — 3/F, No. 3 Ma Tau Kok Road,

R AR
Existing use

[CES

Commercial

[GE S

Commercial

[GES

Commercial

FEMEE
Residential & Commercial

FEREE
Residential & Commercial

R

Lease term

RHIHEG

Long lease

RHHEH

Long lease

ML

Long lease

REIHEL
Long lease

hHAFE A

Medium-term lease

Tokwawan,

Hong Kong

EBE AR E3475 FEREE RHEAFEA
No. 347 Portland Street, Residential & Commercial Long lease

Mongkok, Hong Kong
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L/ ES:uh1 BEEBR
Property address Existing use
TEERERET AEHE T¥
MEERRE - T ¥ RELUEE

Qingfeng Road West, Industrial

Second Industrial Area,
Sijia Administrative Area,
Shijie Town, Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province,

PRC

A BRI T 4 R = B 18201855 BES
FEEMERNE14E1400F

Unit 1409, Level 14, Commercial
Shenhua Commercial Building,

No. 2018 Jiabin Road,

Luohu District, Shenzhen,

PRC
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R

Lease term

REEA

Medium-term lease

PR

Medium-term lease
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